
 

City and Borough of Wrangell 
August 7, 2018 

 

 

 

  

 

        
 
 

Tuesday, August 7, 2018     (rescheduled from 7-24-18)                            Location: Assembly Chambers,  
7:00 p.m.                                                                           City Hall  

   
1.     CALL TO ORDER 

a. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE led by Assembly Member Rolland Howell  

b. INVOCATION to be given by Don McConachie 

c. CEREMONIAL MATTERS – Community Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, Certificates of Service, Guest Introductions. 

i. Certificate of Service – Patrick Mayer (Hospital Board) 
 

2.  ROLL CALL  
 

3. PERSONS TO BE HEARD  
 

4. AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA  
 

5. CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
 

6.      CONSENT AGENDA 

Consent Agenda Items: 
a. Approval of Assembly Minutes – June 26, 2018 (Regular) & July 11, 2018 (Special) & July 19, 

2018 (Special) 
 

Correspondence Items: 
b. School Board Action (June 18, 2018 – action only, minutes will follow); Regular Minutes (May 21, 2018) 

c. Federal Lobbyist Report – June 2018 

d. Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) update – June 2018 
e. Byford Junkyard Clean-up Status Report (week ending 7-8-18) 

f. Byford Junkyard Clean-up Status Report (week ending 7-15-18) 

g. Byford Junkyard Clean-up Status Report (week ending 7-22-18) 
h. Wrangell Medical Center Board Minutes – June 20, 2018 (Regular) 

i. Reporting from Catholic Community Services covering Oct 2017 – March 2018 
 

7.      BOROUGH MANAGER’S REPORT 
a. Water Report 
b. Capital Facilities/Public Works Report 
c. “Snack Shack” Report 
d. Nuisance Abatement Draft Ordinance (To be distributed at the meeting) 

 

8. BOROUGH CLERK’S FILE 
 

9. MAYOR AND ASSEMBLY BUSINESS  
 

10. MAYOR AND ASSEMBLY APPOINTMENTS 
a. Appointment to fill the vacancy on the Wrangell Medical Center Board  

 

City and Borough of Wrangell 
Borough Assembly Meeting 

AGENDA 
 

 

kim
Typewritten Text



 

City and Borough of Wrangell 
August 7, 2018 

 

 

 

  

 

11. PUBLIC HEARING  
 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

13. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Approval of a Match Agreement with US Department of Transportation Federal Highway 

Administration for the North Country Trailhead Access Road Repair Project 
 

b. Approval of a Match Agreement with US Department of Transportation Federal Highway 

Administration for the Non-Motorized Transportation System (Mt. Dewey Trail Extension) Project  
 

c. Approval of a Five-Year Extension of the Municipal Solid Waste Transport and Disposal Agreement 

with Republic Services at a First Year Combined Base Rate of $121.03 Per Ton with 3.5% Annual 

Scheduled Increases in Years 2-5  

 
d. PROPOSED RESOLUTION No. 08-18-1421 OF THE ASSEMBLY OF THE CITY AND BOROUGH 

OF WRANGELL, ALASKA PROVIDING FOR THE CREATION OF THE NOLAN CENTER FACILITY 
MANAGER JOB DESCRIPTION AND AMENDING THE NON-UNION WAGE AND GRADE TABLE 

 

14.    ATTORNEY’S FILE – Available for Assembly review in the Borough Clerk’s office 
 

15.    EXECUTIVE SESSION 
a. Assistance request from Lavern Lawrence 
b. Matters related to the Transfer of WMC to SEARHC 

  

16.    ADJOURNMENT 

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text



CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: 
Ceremonial Matters 

NO. 1c Date July 24, 2018 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 

 

Kim Lane, Borough Clerk 

 

 

 
 
 

INFORMATION:  

Ceremonial Matters. Community Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, Certificates of Service, 
Guest Introductions. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: No action required.  

  
i. Certificate of Service – Patrick Mayer (Wrangell Medical Center 

Board) 

 

kim
Rectangle

kim
Typewritten Text
                           August 7, 2018





CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: 
 

Consent Agenda 

NO. 6 Date August 7, 2018 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 

 

Kim Lane, Borough Clerk 

 

 

 
 
 

INFORMATION:  

Consent agenda. Items listed on the consent agenda or marked with an asterisk (*) are considered 
routine and will be passed in one motion; provided, upon the request of any member, the manager, or 
the clerk, an item on the consent agenda shall be removed from the consent agenda and placed under 
New Business for assembly action. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Move to approve the Consent Agenda as submitted. 
 

 
Consent Agenda Items: 

a. Approval of Assembly Minutes – June 26, 2018 (Regular); July 11, 2018 (Special); July 19, 2018 
(Special); August 2, 2018 (Special) 
 

Correspondence Items: 

b. School Board Action (June 18, 2018 – action only, minutes will follow); Regular Minutes (May 21, 2018) 
c. Federal Lobbyist Report – June 2018 
d. Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) update – June 2018 

e. Byford Junkyard Clean-up Status Report (week ending 7-8-18) 

f. Byford Junkyard Clean-up Status Report (week ending 7-15-18) 

g. Byford Junkyard Clean-up Status Report (week ending 7-22-18) 

h. Wrangell Medical Center Board Minutes – June 20, 2018 (Regular) 
i. Reporting from Catholic Community Services covering Oct 2017 – March 2018 
 

 

 

kim
Rectangle



 

 

 
Minutes of Regular Assembly Meeting 

Held on June 26, 2018  
 
Mayor David L. Jack called the Regular Assembly meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., June 26, 2018, in the 
Borough Assembly Chambers. Assembly Members Gilbert, Larrabee, Powell, Howell, and Prysunka 
were present. Assembly Member Decker was absent. Borough Manager Von Bargen and Clerk Kim 
Lane were also in attendance. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Assembly Member Stephen Prysunka. 
 
The Invocation was given by Nettie Covalt with the Presbyterian Church. 
 
CEREMONIAL MATTERS - None. 
 
PERSONS TO BE HEARD – None. 
 
AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA – None. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST – None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Consent Agenda Items: 

a. Approval of Assembly Minutes – May 22, 2018 (Regular) 
b. Approval of a Special Events Permit Application – BPO Elks 1595 
c. Approval of Liquor License Application (#4618) for North Star Ventures LLC (Stikine 

Restaurant) for a Beverage Dispensary-Tourism 
d. Approval of Application and Form AB-03 (Restaurant Designation Permit Application) for 

North Star Ventures LLC (Stikine Restaurant) 
e. Approval of a Transfer License Application from Southeast Properties LLC to North Star 

Ventures LLC (Goodale to Harris) for the Stikine Restaurant-Beverage Dispensary - Tourism 
 

Correspondence Items: 
f. School Board Minutes –School Board Action (none) 
g. Travel Summary Report (January 2018 thru May 2018) 
h. Condolence letter from the Petersburg Vice-Mayor Gregor 
i. Wrangell Medical Center Board Minutes – May 30, 2018 (Regular) & June 5, 2018 (Special) 

 
M/S: Gilbert/Powell moved to approve the Consent Agenda as submitted. Motion approved 
unanimously by polled vote.  

 
BOROUGH MANAGER’S REPORT 
In addition to the Manager’s written report, Von Bargen provided an update on the following:  

• Foreclosure update: Prior to publication in the local newspaper, there were 237 unpaid 
property tax bills; since appearing in the initial publication, dropped down to 96 unpaid 
property tax bills; publishing at least two more times in the newspaper; should see a further 
deduction. 

• ADEC informed the Borough that we are required by federal regulation to be listed on the 
manifests as the owners, for the material being shipped South 

kim
Typewritten Text
6a



 

 

 

• Pink Salmon disaster funds approved, federally; shows that SE Alaska should be getting $10 
million in disaster relief funds; will work with Carol Rushmore to find out what we need to do 
to ensure that we receive some of those funds 

• Huge thank you to the Friends of the Museum for their $3000 contribution for the Wrangell 
Museum 

• Nolan Center Director interviews happening Thursday and Friday of this week 
• Finance Director initial interviews should happen within 10-14 days 
• Special Assembly meeting required (July 11th at 6:30p.m.) 

 
In response to Prysunka, Ms. Al-Haddad stated that regarding the significant decrease in water usage 
from last year to this year, it could be in part to 1) Leak detection; 2) Conservation; and 3) reducing 
waste at the plant; without metering, it’s difficult to monitor usage. 
 
Prysunka asked if the decrease in usage affect the engineer for the new DAF Plant; Ms. Al-Haddad’s 
response was that the actual plant was about 10-15% of the cost for the entire project; Von Bargen 
stated that when the engineering of the system is done, they will be using all the water data that we 
are compiling to determine what we need.  
 
BOROUGH CLERK’S FILE 
Clerk Lane’s report was provided.  
 
MAYOR AND ASSEMBLY BUSINESS  
Prysunka reported on the SEAPA Board meeting that had occurred in Wrangell last week; stated that 
there were major upcoming projects for SEAPA. 

• Very little spillage at the power plant, which is good 
• Approved the rebate for the communities (approx. $240,000 coming back to Wrangell) 
• Major projects costing hundreds of millions of dollars will be coming up in the next 10-15 

years 
• Pole replacement between Swan and Bailey and Tyee and the poles from – will cost around 

$150 million for just the poles 
• Underground Cable replacement – will cost around $200 to $300 million 
• New rate fund established recently (seeded $2 million) 

 
The cost per KW hour rate has not increased for over 20 years. 
 
Prysunka also stated that the Assembly had approved the Hospital Board budget at the last meeting; 
that budget had a deficit of over $800,000; shouldn’t have voted to approve that; asked Von Bargen 
for assurance from make sure to communicate to the Hospital Administrator that the hospital was 
doing everything that they could do to minimize costs; will not approve budgets in the future if there 
is no one at the meeting to speak to the budget. 
 
Von Bargen stated that the hospital had been advised that the Medicare and Medicaid rates are due 
to increase; that means that the cost of operations will be covered by the revised rates; at the request 
of Prysunka, Von Bargen said that she would request that a revised or amended budget be submitted 
by the hospital.   
 
MAYOR AND ASSEMBLY APPOINTMENTS  

a. Appointment to fill the alternate vacancy seat on the SEAPA Board of Directors for CY 2018 



 

 

 
 
Mayor Jack appointed Jim Nelson to fill the vacancy. There were no objections from the Assembly.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING – None. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
12a Approval of Contract with Tamico RnR JV in the Amount of $8,355,240 for the Shoemaker Bay 
Harbor Project (postponed from the June 12, 2018 Assembly Meeting) 
 
Mayor Jack stated that the motion on the floor was as follows:  
 
M/S: Prysunka/Powell moved to approve a contract award to Tamico RnR JV in the amount of 
$8,355,240 for the Shoemaker Bay Harbor Project. 
 
Von Bargen explained that the protest that had been received by Western Dock and Bridge stated 
that Tamico RnR JV had not had a joint business license; also, that Tamico RnR JV had a perceived 
lack of experience with like projects. Von Bargen stated that both businesses had individual business 
licenses and were in the process of obtaining a joint business license; we are now in receipt of that 
joint license; staff believed that the absence of the joint business license at the time of bid did not 
materially impact or prejudice anyone else from bidding; bid documents allowed staff to waive 
immaterialities or irregularities and that’s what we did since again, the absence of a joint business 
license didn’t impact or prejudice anyone else from bidding. 
 
Von Bargen also stated that on the second claim on lack of similar project experience, the Public 
Works director researched in other communities where they had done similar projects, and she is 
comfortable with their project experience.  
 
Von Bargen stated that Western Dock and Bridge had stated that they may still submit an appeal to 
the protest; they have until Friday to submit an appeal.  
 
Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
13a Approval of Project Contingency Allocation in the Amount of $417,762 for the Shoemaker Bay 
Harbor Project 
 
M/S: Prysunka/Gilbert moved to approve the Project Contingency Allocation in the Amount of 
$417,762 for the Shoemaker Bay Harbor Project. 
 
Von Bargen explained that in the past when contracts were approved, the contingency amount had 
been added to the contract amount; prefer to separate out because it could be very confusing when 
the assembly is approving an “up to” contract amount that includes the contingency, essentially 
giving a false amount for the contract amount, rather than the actual amount of the bid and contract.  
 
Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
13b Approval of Professional Services Agreement with PND Engineers in the Amount of $731,328 
for Construction Administration and Construction Inspection for the Shoemaker Bay Harbor Project 



 

 

 
 
M/S: Howell/Powell moved to approve a Professional Services Agreement with PND Engineers 
for Contract Administration and Construction Inspection in the amount of $731,328.00 for the 
Shoemaker Bay Harbor Project.  
 
Prysunka questioned if this amount was the norm by percentage of cost of project for engineering, 
for this type of project; Ms. Al-Haddad stated that it could run anywhere from 8% to 10%; this 
amount is 10%. 
 
Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
13c Approval of Amendment to Letter of Intent with the City and Borough of Wrangell and 
SEARHC 
 
M/S: Howell/Gilbert moved to Approve the Amendment to the Letter of Intent with the City & 
Borough of Wrangell and SEARHC. Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
13d PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 06-18-1417 OF THE ASSEMBLY OF THE CITY & BOROUGH OF 
WRANGELL, ALASKA AMENDING THE JOB DESCRIPTION OF POLICE SERGEANT 
 
M/S: Gilbert/Powell moved to Approve Resolution No. 06-18-1417 of the Assembly of the City and 
Borough of Wrangell, Alaska Amending the Job Description of the Police Sergeant. Motion 
approved unanimously by polled vote 
 
13e PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 06-18-1418 OF THE ASSEMBLY OF THE CITY & BOROUGH OF 
WRANGELL, ALASKA AMENDING THE JOB DESCRIPTION OF POLICE LIEUTENANT 
 
M/S: Prysunka/Howell moved to Approve Resolution No. 06-18-1418 of the Assembly of the City 
and Borough of Wrangell, Alaska Amending the Job Description of the Police Lieutenant. Motion 
approved unanimously by polled vote.  
 
13f Approval of Professional Services Agreement with the State of Alaska for Wrangell Regional 
and Community Jail in the Amount of $371,975 
 
M/S: Move to Approve Professional Services Agreement with the State of Alaska for Wrangell 
Regional and Community Jail in the Amount of $371,975. 
 
Prysunka stated that he wanted to make sure that the funding that we would be receiving for the 
diversion program was going to be used for those purposes. Police Chief McCloskey said that they 
would.  
 
Main Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
13g Approval of 60 Foot Floating Easement through the Institute Property to Provide Access to 
Properties Identified on the Preliminary Plat for Trust Land Survey 2018-10 for the Land Trade 
between the Alaska Mental Health Trust and US Forest Service 
 



 

 

 
M/S:  Prysunka/Gilbert moved to approve a 60 Foot Floating Easement through the Institute 
Property to Provide Access to Properties Identified on the Preliminary Plat for Trust Land 
Survey 2018-10 for the Land Trade between the Alaska mental Health Trust and the US Forest 
Service. 
 
Von Bargen stated that this was in the Rainbow Falls Area; Alaska Mental Health needs road access, 
that’s the purpose of the floating easement; does not prefer them but we don’t have enough 
information to do a hard easement at this time. 
 
Larrabee stated that he would really like to see this area preserved; would like more information 
before deciding.  
 
Von Bargen stated that if the Assembly wanted to postpone this item, Carol Rushmore could be 
available to answer questions. 
 
M/S: Prysunka/Gilbert moved to postpone this item until the July 11th Special Assembly meeting. 
Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
ATTORNEY’S FILE – Available for Assembly review in the Borough Clerk’s office. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
15a Mill Property 
 
15b Borough Clerk’s Annual Evaluation 
 
15a M/S: Prysunka/Gilbert moved, pursuant to 44.62.320 (c) (1), that we recess into executive 
session to discuss matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse 
effect upon the finances of the Borough; specifically, to discuss the possible options for the Mill 
Site property for the City & Borough of Wrangell. Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
15b M/S: Prysunka/Powell moved, pursuant to 44.62.320 (c) (2), that we recess into executive 
session to discuss matters that may tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any 
person, specifically, the Borough Clerk’s annual Evaluation. Motion approved unanimously by 
polled vote. 
 
Recessed into Executive Session at 8:05 p.m. 
Reconvened back into regular session at 9:01 p.m. 
 
Regular Assembly meeting adjourned at 9:02 p.m. 
 
 
        _____________________________________________ 
        David L. Jack, Mayor 
ATTEST: ____________________________________  
                  Kim Lane, MMC, Borough Clerk 



 

 

 

 

Minutes of Special Assembly Meeting 
Held on July 11, 2018  

 

Mayor David L. Jack called the Special Assembly meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., July 11, 2018, in 
the Borough Assembly Chambers. Assembly Members Powell, Gilbert, Decker, Prysunka, and 
Howell were present. Assembly Member Larrabee was absent. Borough Manager Von Bargen 
and Clerk Kim Lane were also in attendance. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST – None.  
 

PERSONS TO BE HEARD – None. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
5a Approval of 60 Foot Floating Easement through the Institute Property to Provide 
Access to Properties Identified on the Preliminary Plat for Trust Land Survey 2018-10 for 
the Land Trade between the Alaska Mental Health Trust and US Forest Service (postponed 
from the June 26, 2018 Assembly meeting) 
 
Clerk Lane stated that the motion on the floor was: to approve a 60 Foot Floating Easement 
through the Institute Property to Provide Access to Properties Identified on the 
Preliminary Plat for Trust Land Survey 2018-10 for the Land Trade between the Alaska 
mental Health Trust and the US Forest Service. 
 
At the request of the Assembly, Carol Rushmore, Economic Development Director explained 
that with the proposed land trade between the US Forest Service (USFS) and the Mental Health 
Trust Authority (AMHT), the floating easement was being requested on the preliminary plats 
that would be submitted to the Mental Health Trust Authority office; would enable AMHT to 
extend the floating easement through Lot 2 to USFS lands beyond and to Lot 1 (going to USFS 
lands) which is necessary because Rainbow Falls trail is not adequate access.  
 
Rushmore stated that what was being requested isn’t anything that wasn’t already in place, this 
just formalizes it; the floating easement essentially says that this is where the access will be 
until such time that the land is developed and surveyed; the floating easement would then 
become an actual right of way. 
 
Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
5b PROPOSED RESOLUTION No. 07-18-1419 OF THE ASSEMBLY OF THE CITY AND 
BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA PROVIDING FOR THE CREATION OF THE CAPITAL 
FACILITIES DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION AND AMENDING THE NON-UNION WAGE AND 
GRADE TABLE 
 
M/S: Prysunka/Gilbert to approve Resolution 07-18-1419 Providing for the Creation of the 
Capital Facilities Director job description and the Amendment of the Non-Union Wage and 
Grade Table. Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 

kim
Typewritten Text
6a



 

 

 

 

5c PROPOSED RESOLUTION No. 07-18-1420 OF THE ASSEMBLY OF THE CITY AND 
BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF THE PUBLIC 
WORKS DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
M/S: Gilbert/Howell to approve Resolution 07-18-1419 Providing for the Creation of the 
Capital Facilities Director job description and the Amendment of the Non-Union Wage and 
Grade Table. Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
5d Approval to reschedule the July 24, 2018 Regular Assembly meeting to August 7, 2018 
 
M/S: Decker/Gilbert to approve rescheduling the July 24, 2018 Regular Assembly meeting 
to August 7, 2018. Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
5e Approval to hold a Special Assembly meeting on August 2, 2018 
 
M/S: Prysunka/Howell to approve holding a Special Assembly meeting on August 2, 2018 
at 5:30 p.m. Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
5f Approval of Amendment #1 to the Professional Services Agreement with Dorsey & 
Whitney, LLP for Healthcare Consulting Services in the Amount of $294,630.50 
 
M/S: Howell/Powell to Approve Amendment #1 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with Dorsey & Whitney, LLP for Healthcare Consulting Services in the Amount of 
$294,630.50. 
 
At this point in the meeting, Clerk Lane called Louanne Cutler, Dorsey & Whitney to join in 
the discussion and answer questions, if necessary.  
 
In response to Prysunka on if the requested expenses being spent against the originally 1.8-
million-dollar grant was allowed, Von Bargen stated that yes, the expenditures were 
allowed; the grant is for a new hospital, not specifically for the construction of a new 
hospital; Von Bargen stated that staff had received confirmation from the grantors that the 
expenditures could be spent against the grant.  
 
Gilbert questioned the cost overrun on Phase I; Von Bargen stated that the expenditure had 
not yet been done. In response to Gilbert on why there was a cost overrun in Phase I when 
Task 3 had not been performed, Von Bargen stated that it was because there had been 
more work involved in the review of the LOI than what was originally anticipated.  
 
Gilbert asked if the billable hours were available to review; Von Bargen stated that yes, 
they were available for anyone to review.  
 
In response to Gilbert on why the lease term was not used, Von Bargen stated that there 
would be a lease for the building but not for the hospital operations. Ms. Cutler expounded 
on that by saying that legal transactions typically have “consideration” but that 
consideration doesn’t necessarily have to be cash; essentially, SEARHC is building us a new 
hospital (at their cost), and will operate the existing hospital with its current provisions of 



 

 

 

 

services, assuming that nothing catastrophic happens before the new hospital is built; so 
cash may not necessarily be changing hands but “considerations” will be changing hands. 
 
In response to Gilbert on if Root is a subcontractor of Dorsey & Whitney, Von Bargen stated 
that Root would be performing an asset evaluation of all of the considerations within the 
asset purchase agreement that the Borough would be granting to SEARHC, as part of the 
transaction; far more comprehensive than the evaluation that had been done previously by 
SEARHC. 
 
In response to Gilbert on potential liabilities to the Borough, Von Bargen stated that 
potential liabilities could be discussed with the Assembly at the Special Assembly meeting, 
in Executive Session, on August 2, 2018. 
 
Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
Special Assembly Meeting adjourned at 7:11 p.m. 
    

__________________________________________ 
        David L. Jack, Mayor 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 
                  Kim Lane, MMC, Borough Clerk 



 

 

 

 

Minutes of Special Assembly Meeting 
Held on July 19, 2018  

 

Mayor David L. Jack called the Special Assembly meeting to order at 5:30 p.m., July 19, 2018, in 
the Borough Assembly Chambers. Assembly Members Powell, Gilbert, Decker (arrived at 5:38 
p.m.), Prysunka, and Howell were present. Assembly Member Larrabee was absent. Borough 
Manager Von Bargen and Clerk Kim Lane were also in attendance. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST – None.  
 

PERSONS TO BE HEARD – None. 
 

ITEM OF BUSINESS 
 
5a EXECUTIVE SESSION: Discuss with the Borough’s legal counsel, Dorsey & Whitney 
LLP, legal issues regarding the proposed Asset Purchase Agreement with SEARHC regarding 
the Wrangell Medical Center 

 
M/S: Howell/Prysunka moved, pursuant to AS 44.62.310 (c)(1) and AS 44.62.310(c)(3), and 
section 3.04.120 of the Wrangell Municipal Code,  that we recess into executive session to 
discuss privileged and confidential attorney-client information with our legal counsel, 
Dorsey & Whitney LLP and the Borough Manager, as well as information the immediate 
knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the Borough, 
regarding a proposed Asset Purchase Agreement between the Borough and SEARHC 
regarding the Wrangell Medical Center. Motion approved unanimously by polled vote. 
 
At the request of Prysunka, Clerk Lane was invited into the Executive Session. There were no 
objections from the Assembly.  
 
Recessed into Executive Session at 5:32 p.m. 
Reconvened back into Special Session at 6:26 p.m. 
 
Jack declared that there was no further business to consider.  
 
Special Assembly Meeting adjourned at 6:26 p.m. 
    

__________________________________________ 
        David L. Jack, Mayor 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 
                  Kim Lane, MMC, Borough Clerk 

kim
Typewritten Text
6a



 

BOARD ACTION 

Wrangell Public Schools 

 

For Details, Contact: 
Patrick Mayer. 
Superintendent 
Direct Phone: 907-874-2347 

For Release: 11:15 AM 
June 19, 2018 

WRANGELL PUBLIC SCHOOL BOARD 
Regular MEETING 

June 18, 2018 
 

 
 
 

• Approved the Agenda as presented 

• Moved the Public Hearing re Progress toward 2017-2018 Strategic Plan Goals to the 
June Meeting 

• Approved the Items on the Consent Agenda as presented 

o Accepted the minutes of May 21, 2018 Regular School Board Meeting  

o Approved removing the obsolete ipads from the inventory list 

o Approved selling laptop computers to graduating seniors and staff members 
as presented 

o Offered contract addenda as presented for the 2018-2019 school year 

o Offered extracurricular contracts for the 2018-2019 school year for Jennifer 
Ingman, Freshman Class Advisor, Shanna Mall, Art Festival Director and 
Scott McAuliffe, Baseball Head Coach  

o Approved the hire of Stephanie Carny, Elementary Secretary 

o Approved the hire of Brittani Robbins, IT Coordinator 

o Reviewed Letters of Resignation for: 

§ Fred Angerman, Maintenance Director 

§ Megan Clark, Paraprofessional 

§ Pam Roope, Business Manager 

• Entered into a contract with SEARHC to provide counseling services 

• Adopted the FY’19 School Budget as presented, reflecting the reduced contribution 
from the City and Borough of Wrangell 

• Adopted the Strategic Plan 

• Approved the FY’18 Budget Revision 

• Entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with Wrangell Teachers’ Association 
redefining “day” to allow the Title I Intervention teacher position to be hired in June 

• Accepted the first reading of: 

o Board Policy 1325, Advertising and Promotion 

o Board Policy 7131, Ad Hoc Committees 

• Accepted the second reading of: 

o  Board Policy 1250, Volunteer Assistance 

o Board Policy 1312.4, Public Complaints Concerning Elementary and 
Secondary Education Act Programs 

o Board Policy 2123, Superintendent Evaluation 

o Board Policy 5040, Student Nutrition & Physical Activity 

o Board Policy 6145, Extracurricular and Co-curricular Activities 

o Board Policy 1400, Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and 
the Schools 

• Adjourned 

kim
Typewritten Text
6b



kim
Typewritten Text
6b







To:  The Honorable Dave Jack 
                     The Wrangell Borough Assembly 
                     Lisa Von Bargen, Borough Manager 
      
From:  Brad Gilman & Sebastian O’Kelly  
 
Re:  Washington Update 
 
Date:  July 2, 2018 
 
 
1. FY 2019 Appropriations:  With last year’s bipartisan two year agreement on overall 
spending levels in place, we are seeing appropriations bills move through Committee and the 
House and Senate floor more quickly and with less controversy than they have in recent memory.  
We believe that there is a good chance that a number of these bills may pass the Congress by the 
start of the new fiscal year on October 1.   A number of issues could slow their pace, namely, 
immigration and health care.  Last year, President Trump threatened to veto the FY 2018 
Omnibus Appropriations Bill but backed off because of its generous increases in defense 
spending.  It is unclear what approach he will take once the FY 2019 bills reach his desk. 
 

The House and Senate Appropriations Committees have rejected major spending 
reductions or program terminations proposed by the Administration that benefit rural Alaska 
communities.  This includes Essential Air Service; USDA Rural Development; Denali 
Commission; Army Corps Section 107 Small Navigation Projects Program; Economic 
Development Administration;  NMFS fisheries data collection, surveys, and assessments; and 
Community Development Block Grants. 
 
2. Seafood Tariffs:  Seafood has now been caught up in an escalating trade dispute between 
the U.S. and China.  In retaliation for raising tariffs on steel and other imports from China, the 
Chinese government has announced, effective July 6th, that there will be a 25 percent duty on 
U.S. seafood exports along with autos and some agricultural products.  As the largest seafood 
exporter to China with annual value of approaching $1 billion, Alaska’s fishing economy will 
bear the brunt of the increase.  All three Members of the Delegation have raised concerns about 
the tariff and are urging the Trump Administration to find a solution to the trade dispute that 
protects U.S. seafood from the tariffs.  This issue continues to unfold as of the date of this report.  
One unknown issue is whether the tariffs would apply to seafood sent to China for secondary 
processing and re-export.  
 
3. BUILD Act Infrastructure Grants.   The Department of Transportation has issued 
public notice for applications for transportation infrastructure under the BUILD Act.  This is a 
new program that is a reconstituted version of the former TIGER grants program, but with a 
broader reach, greater flexibility and more funds set aside for rural projects ($450 million of the 
$1.5 billion allocated for this fiscal year will go to rural projects).  The cost-sharing criteria has 
been de-emphasized and for rural projects the Federal cost can be up to 100 percent, with a $1 
million minimum and $25 million maximum award.  Applications are due July 18th and can be 
found at the link below. 

kim
Typewritten Text
                 6c

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text
 

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text



 
https://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/docs/policy-initiatives/build/114796/fed-reg-
build-nofo-2018_0.pdf 
 
4. Fisheries and Oceans 
 

• Coast Guard Reauthorization:      The House Transportation and Infrastructure 
Committee added the Coast Guard Reauthorization Act as an amendment to the House 
version of the National Defense Authorization Act (“NDAA”).    The amendment 
includes the Jones Act/Fisheries Endorsement waivers for the Amendment 80 vessel 
AMERICA’S FINEST.    The waiver includes sideboard protections for the Bering Sea 
and Gulf of Alaska shorebased groundfish industries.   The Coast Guard bill does not 
include the Vessel Incidental Discharge Act (“VIDA”) legislation to create a uniform 
national ballast water treatment regulatory process.   The bill also does not include an 
extension of the moratorium on the EPA rule governing incidental discharges from 
commercial fishing vessels.    The Senate version of the NDAA passed this month, but 
does not include the Coast Guard Reauthorization Act or the AMERICA’S FINEST 
waiver.   
 

• Magnuson-Stevens Act:    The House Resources Committee has filed the report on its 
version of the MSA reauthorization.  We understand the Committee is preparing to take 
the bill to the House Floor in July. While there is still no comprehensive MSA draft 
circulating in the Senate, we do expect Senator Wicker (R-MS) to try and move his 
recreational fishing bill -- S.1520 “The Modern Fish Act” -- to the Senate floor for 
consideration prior to the August recess. Despite this activity, the MSA reauthorization is 
still likely to roll over into 2019. 
 

• Aleutian Island Pollock:  The FY 2019 Senate Commerce-Justice-Science 
Appropriations Bill includes report language that directs NMFS, in coordination with 
Adak, the Aleut Corporation, and the North Pacific Fishery Management Council, to 
issue an Exempted Fishing Permit [EFP] for a pollock test fishery, and depending on the 
results of that EFP, consider additional regulatory changes to the management of 
Aleutian Islands pollock.   
 

• Ocean Policy Changes:  The Trump Administration has issued a new Executive Order 
on ocean policy.  It eliminates the National Ocean Council and nine Federal Regional 
Planning Bodies set up by the prior Administration and replaces them with a smaller 
Ocean Policy Committee and greater reliance on State-formed Regional Ocean 
Partnerships.  The focus has shifted as well towards greater ocean economic development 
and commerce. 
 

• Pink Salmon Disaster Assistance:   The Congress appropriated $220 million last year to 
fund eleven fishery disasters around the nation, including the 2016 Gulf of Alaska Pink 
Salmon fishery.   The Secretary of Commerce recently announced the allocation of these 
funds, and Alaska is to receive roughly $56 million, with Southeast Alaska receiving a 
little more than $10 million.  The next step is for Governor Walker to work with the 

https://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/docs/policy-initiatives/build/114796/fed-reg-build-nofo-2018_0.pdf
https://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/docs/policy-initiatives/build/114796/fed-reg-build-nofo-2018_0.pdf


NMFS Alaska Region staff to develop a spending methodology.  Local governments can 
be eligible to receive funding for any foregone fish taxes as a result of the reduced 
landings but should approach the State to ensure consideration.    
 

• Alaska Native Ivory:  In 2016, the Fish & Wildlife Service issued regulation that 
implemented a ‘‘near-total ban’’ on the commercial trade of elephant ivory in the United 
States.  The Senate Appropriations Committee has raised concerns that the Federal 
prohibition on the sale and trade of elephant ivory has negatively impacted the Alaska 
Native arts economy. The ban does not apply to walrus and mammoth ivory being used 
by Alaska Natives for handicrafts.   The Appropriations Committee has instructed FWS 
to develop an outreach plan to make sure the public is aware that walrus and mammoth 
ivory handicrafts are legal.   
 

• NMFS Transfer To Department of Interior:  The Administration has released its 
proposal for government reorganization and reform.  It includes a recommendation to 
transfer the National Marine Fisheries Service to the Dept. of Interior to be merged with 
the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service.  The recommendation is based on its view that the 
agencies share similar missions, along with wildlife management and conservation 
responsibilities.  The recommendation would require legislation.  We foresee a lot of 
resistance within Congress to the proposal. 
 

• H-2B Visas:  The H-2B visa program is used by seafood processors to bring in guest 
workers from other countries during fishing seasons.  The immigration reform bill being 
considered by the House includes changes to the program that would make it easier for 
the processors to administer and retain guest workers, including language that would 
allow processors to use agricultural guest worker visas.  This bill also would provide for a 
permanent H-2B returning worker exemption, meaning that an H-2B worker in one 
summer season could come back in the following summer season, without counting 
against the H-2B cap of 66,000 workers annually for the program for the entire U.S. 
 

• Columbia River Sea Lion Lethal Take Legislation:  The House has passed legislation 
that would authorize the States of Oregon and Washington as well as select Tribes to 
lethally take sea lions that have been excessively preying on endangered salmon and 
steelhead in the Columbia River system.  Estimates show that the sea lions have been 
killing up to 20 percent of the Columbia’s endangered chinook run and 90 percent of one 
of the steelhead runs. 

 
5. Coast Guard Vessels:  The FY 2019 Senate Department of Homeland Security 
Appropriations Bill has been reported from Committee.  The bill provides $12 billion for the 
U.S. Coast Guard, $500 million above the amount requested by the Administration.  Investments 
include $750 million to award a construction contract for the first heavy polar icebreaker in over 
40 years; $400 million for the second Offshore Patrol Cutter and long lead time materials for the 
third; $240 million for procurement of four Fast Response Cutters; and $255 million for shore 
facility construction. 
 



6. Water Resources Development Act (WRDA)/Army Corps Reorganization:  The 
House has passed legislation to authorize Army Corps civil works projects and programs.  The 
bill is smaller and less ambitious than prior WRDAs in terms of authorizing new projects or 
expanding existing ones.  It contains a few provisions relevant to Alaska coastal communities.  It 
raises the current Federal cost share cap of $10,000,000 under the Section 107 Small Navigation 
Projects Program to $12,500,000.  It also requires a Government Accountability Office report on 
Corps efforts to protect Native Villages from flooding and coastal erosion, including relocation.  
It authorizes expediting completion of feasibility studies for flood diversion and navigation, 
respectively, for the Cities of Seward and Nome.  The Senate Environment and Public Works 
Committee marked up its version of WRDA.  It similarly raises the Section 107 cap and includes 
the GAO villages study, and is limited in scope in terms of new project authorizations. 
 

Separately, the Administration’s government reorganization and reform plan includes a 
proposal that would transfer the Army Corps’ civil works and navigation programs to the 
Department of Transportation based on the premise that DOT is better served to work with the 
States and local governments on larger port development projects that include elements 
(shoreside infrastructure, floats & docks, intermodal transfer facilities, etc) that traditionally are 
not eligible for Corps funding.  As with the NMFS proposed transfer, we anticipate that there 
will be Congressional opposition to the recommendation. 
 
7. PILT Lawsuit/Funding:  The law firm Smith Currie has succeeded in a lawsuit filed on 
behalf of a Utah County against the Federal government for underpayment of PILT payments for 
FY 2015-2017.  The U.S. Court of Federal Claims handling the case has certified it as a class 
action lawsuit, thereby inviting all PILT recipients across the country to be eligible to receive a 
portion of the settlement.  PILT communities must formally “opt in” via an online form at the 
link below by September 14.  The award is likely to be fairly small, approximately 1.33% of the 
total PILT payments Boroughs/Cities have received for those three years (minus law firm award 
fees, likely about 1/3rd of the amount).  As there are no upfront legal costs and no effect on future 
PILT payments, we see no downside to opting in.  Payment would come later in the year unless 
the Federal government appeals the decision to the Court of Appeals.     
 
https://www.smithcurrie.com/piltpaymentsinfo/ 
 

Separately, the House and Senate Interior Appropriations Bills fully fund PILT for FY 
2019.  The Department of Interior has just released the FY 2018 payments, with Wrangell’s 
amount totaling $439,538. 
 
8. Secure Rural Schools (SRS):  The Forest Service has issued this year’s SRS payments 
(they are credited to FY 2017 even though they were made during FY 2018) to communities.  
Wrangell received $845,690.  Under the current legislative extension, there will be one more 
payment next year before the program will have to be extended again.  Separately, both the 
House and Senate Farm Bills reauthorize the SRS Resources Advisory Committees through 
2023.  
 
9. Essential Air Service (EAS)/Air Traffic Control Privatization:  An effort on the 
House floor by Rep. Tom McClintock (R-CA) to defund the EAS program during debate on the 

https://www.smithcurrie.com/piltpaymentsinfo/


FAA reauthorization bill was soundly defeated on a bipartisan basis..  EAS funding is included 
in both the House and Senate Appropriations Bills funding DOT for FY 2019, with the Senate 
bill actually providing a 16 percent increase above current funding levels.  The Trump 
Administration requested a 40 percent cut in appropriations for the program.  Despite support 
from the Trump Administration as well as the Chairman of the House Transportation & 
Infrastructure Committee, Air Traffic Control privatization has been dropped from the FAA bill, 
in good part due to concerns from rural lawmakers that it could result in reduced and higher cost 
service to rural airports or even closures of those airports. 
 
10. Tongass Forest Management:  Rep. Young was successful in attaching an amendment 
to the House Farm Bill that would reinstate the Alaska exemption to the Roadless Rule.  Senator 
Murkowski incorporated a number of Tongass-related items in the FY 2019 Senate Interior 
Appropriations Bill.  They include -- $1 million for the Forest Service to continue its inventory  
of new growth/old growth timber; a directive not to transition away from old growth harvest 
until the inventory is complete; and based on the results of the inventory to consider a plan 
revision or new plan amendment to the 2016 plan currently in place, with any revision or 
amendment providing enough harvest to preserve a viable timber industry in the region. 
 
11. Miscellaneous  
 

• Cannabis Legislation:  Bipartisan legislation (The STATES Act) has been introduced to 
protect the ability of states like Alaska that have legalized marijuana for medicinal or 
recreational use from being pre-empted by the Federal government through the 
authorities of the Controlled Substances Act (CSA), the primary Federal stature that 
regulates as well as criminalizes different drugs in the U.S.  Among other provisions, it 
allows cannabis businesses full access to banking services and removes industrial hemp 
from the CSA.  For cannabis, it maintains the prohibition against recreational sale to 
those under the age of 21 and employment of workers under the age of 18, along with 
restrictions against distribution at transportation facilities like rest areas and truck stops.  
All three Members of the Alaska Delegation have signed on as cosponsors.  

 
• Arctic Issues:  The Delegation continues to actively engage on Arctic issues to ensure 

there is a significant Federal role as the region gains in strategic and economic 
importance.  This includes an authorization in the FY 2019 Senate National Defense 
Authorization Act (NDAA) for the Coast Guard to procure up to six medium to heavy 
polar icebreakers.  The bill also requires a report from the Secretaries of Navy, Army and 
Air Force on their Arctic strategies and plans.  Rep. Young was able to have included in 
the House NDAA a requirement for a DOD report on Russia and China activities and 
plans in the Arctic.  Senator Sullivan secured a similar report in the Senate bill. 

 
• NOAA Hydrographic Surveys:  The House has passed legislation authored by Rep. 

Young to reauthorize NOAA’s hydrographic survey program.  The bill increases the 
authorized level of funding for the surveys through 2023 and also includes a set aside of 
$12 million for hydrographic work done in the Arctic.  

 



• Hunting, Fishing and Recreational Guide Regulation Exemption:  The Trump 
Administration has issued an exemption from an Obama Administration Executive Order 
that raised the Federal minimum wage to $10.10 an hour for employees of Federal 
contractors.  The requirement extended to hunting, fishing and recreational outfitters with 
licenses to operate on Federal land.  The exemption will not apply to lodging and 
concessions contracts on Federal land.  Those employees will continue to be covered by 
the $10.10/hour minimum. 

 
• Hunting & Trapping Rule: The National Park Service has proposed a new rule to 

amend prior regulations for sport hunting and trapping in national preserves in Alaska. 
This proposed rule would remove a regulatory provision issued by the National Park 
Service in 2015 that prohibited certain sport hunting practices that are otherwise 
permitted by the State of Alaska.  The rule is open for public comment until July 23rd 
with details at the link -- https://www.regulations.gov/document?D=NPS_FRDOC_0001-
0120.  The move has been praised by all three Members of the Delegation. 

 
 
 
 

https://www.regulations.gov/document?D=NPS_FRDOC_0001-0120
https://www.regulations.gov/document?D=NPS_FRDOC_0001-0120


kim
Typewritten Text
6d



 

 

 

 

July 9, 2018 

 

Sally Schlichting 

Environmental Program Manager I 

Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation 

410 Willoughby Ave, Suite 303 

PO Box 111800 

Juneau, AK 99811-1800 

 

RE: Wrangell Junkyard treated soil packaging, transportation, and disposal 2018.  

 

Ms. Schlichting, 

NRC Alaska is pleased to provide the following Project Status update for the Wrangell Junkyard 
Solid Waste transportation and disposal Project. Our goal is to provide a status update on a 
weekly basis, with photos and notes as appropriate so that all interested parties may remain 
apprised on progress in the field on a regular basis.  We are currently performing work as 
detailed in the soil transport and disposal plan and the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP) for the project as detailed under Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(APDES) permit # AKR10FQ51. This Project Status Update covers project activities as 
performed between July 2, 2018 and July 8, 2018. 

Project Activities: 

Activities during the 2018 field season will focus on the loading of Flexible Intermediate Bulk 
Containers (FIBC). Transfer of FIBC’s to the Silver Bay Logging Mill Site (SBLMS) barge 
staging area for loading and transport to a disposal facility in Oregon. Implementation of initial 
SWPPP measures and road maintenance. 

Project activities accomplished: 

• All FIBC’s stored at the junkyard site have been transported to the SBLMS and staged 

in preparation for barge loading. 

• NRC Alaska and BW Enterprises continued to load FIBC’s, 75 FIBC’s were loaded this 

week for a total loaded count of 337. 
• Lease agreement is in place at the SBLMS. 

• NRC Alaska performed weekly SWPPP inspections. 

 

 

kim
Typewritten Text
6e



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Challenges Encountered: 

• There were no challenges encountered this week. NRC Alaska and BW Enterprises 

crew worked a short week due to 4th of July Holiday. 
 

 

Anticipated Project activities: 

• NRC Alaska will inspect the site monthly per the SWPPP requirements, and also inspect 

the existing stockpile. 
• NRC Alaska and BW Enterprises will continue loading FIBC’s and transporting to 

SBLMS barge loading area for staging and eventual transport to disposal facility.  
 
 

 

We trust this information is adequate to meet your needs.  If you have any questions, please 

feel free to contact NRC Alaska at your convenience.   

 

 

Sincerely, 

NRC Alaska 

                                                         
S. Daniel Strucher 

Sr. Project Manager  

       

   



 

 

 

 

July 16, 2018 

 

Sally Schlichting 

Environmental Program Manager I 

Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation 

410 Willoughby Ave, Suite 303 

PO Box 111800 

Juneau, AK 99811-1800 

 

RE: Wrangell Junkyard treated soil packaging, transportation, and disposal 2018.  

 

Ms. Schlichting, 

NRC Alaska is pleased to provide the following Project Status update for the Wrangell Junkyard 
Solid Waste transportation and disposal Project. Our goal is to provide a status update on a 
weekly basis, with photos and notes as appropriate so that all interested parties may remain 
apprised on progress in the field on a regular basis.  We are currently performing work as 
detailed in the soil transport and disposal plan and the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP) for the project as detailed under Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(APDES) permit # AKR10FQ51. This Project Status Update covers project activities as 
performed between July 9, 2018 and July 15, 2018. 

Project Activities: 

Activities during the 2018 field season will focus on the loading of Flexible Intermediate Bulk 
Containers (FIBC). Transfer of FIBC’s to the Silver Bay Logging Mill Site (SBLMS) barge 
staging area for loading and transport to a disposal facility in Oregon. Implementation of initial 
SWPPP measures and road maintenance. 

Project activities accomplished: 

• All FIBC’s stored at the junkyard site have been transported to the SBLMS and staged 

in preparation for barge loading. 

• NRC Alaska and BW Enterprises continued to load FIBC’s, 153 FIBC’s were loaded 

this week for a total loaded count of 490. 
• NRC Alaska performed weekly SWPPP inspections. 

 

 

 

kim
Typewritten Text
6f



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Challenges Encountered: 

• There were no challenges encountered this week.  

 

 

Anticipated Project activities: 

• NRC Alaska will inspect the site monthly per the SWPPP requirements, and also inspect 

the existing stockpile. 
• NRC Alaska and BW Enterprises will continue loading FIBC’s and transporting to 

SBLMS barge loading area for staging and eventual transport to disposal facility.  
• NRC Alaska anticipates the first barge load out the last week of July. 

 
 

 

We trust this information is adequate to meet your needs.  If you have any questions, please 

feel free to contact NRC Alaska at your convenience.   

 

 

Sincerely, 

NRC Alaska 

                                                         
S. Daniel Strucher 

Sr. Project Manager  

       

   



 

 

 

 

July 23, 2018 

 

Sally Schlichting 

Environmental Program Manager I 

Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation 

410 Willoughby Ave, Suite 303 

PO Box 111800 

Juneau, AK 99811-1800 

 

RE: Wrangell Junkyard treated soil packaging, transportation, and disposal 2018.  

 

Ms. Schlichting, 

NRC Alaska is pleased to provide the following Project Status update for the Wrangell Junkyard 
Solid Waste transportation and disposal Project. Our goal is to provide a status update on a 
weekly basis, with photos and notes as appropriate so that all interested parties may remain 
apprised on progress in the field on a regular basis.  We are currently performing work as 
detailed in the soil transport and disposal plan and the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP) for the project as detailed under Alaska Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(APDES) permit # AKR10FQ51. This Project Status Update covers project activities as 
performed between July 16, 2018 and July 22, 2018. 

Project Activities: 

Activities during the 2018 field season will focus on the loading of Flexible Intermediate Bulk 
Containers (FIBC). Transfer of FIBC’s to the Silver Bay Logging Mill Site (SBLMS) barge 
staging area for loading and transport to a disposal facility in Oregon. Implementation of initial 
SWPPP measures and road maintenance. 

Project activities accomplished: 

• All FIBC’s stored at the junkyard site have been transported to the SBLMS and staged 

in preparation for barge loading. 

• NRC Alaska and BW Enterprises continued to load FIBC’s, 180 FIBC’s were loaded 

this week for a total loaded count of 670. 
• NRC Alaska performed weekly SWPPP inspections. 

 

 

 

kim
Typewritten Text
6g



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Challenges Encountered: 

• Rain delays were encountered this week on two separate days.  

 

 

Anticipated Project activities: 

• NRC Alaska will inspect the site monthly per the SWPPP requirements, and also inspect 

the existing stockpile. 
• NRC Alaska and BW Enterprises will continue loading FIBC’s and transporting to 

SBLMS barge loading area for staging and eventual transport to disposal facility.  
• NRC Alaska anticipates the first barge load out the last week of July. 

 
 

 

We trust this information is adequate to meet your needs.  If you have any questions, please 

feel free to contact NRC Alaska at your convenience.   

 

 

Sincerely, 

NRC Alaska 

                                                         
S. Daniel Strucher 

Sr. Project Manager  

       

   



kim
Typewritten Text
6h





kim
Typewritten Text
6i

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text





CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: NO. 7 DATE: August 7, 2018 

 

Borough Manager’s Report 
 
 

  

SUBMITTED BY: 
FISCAL NOTE: 

Expenditure Required: 

$0 

Lisa Von Bargen, Borough Manager 

Amount Budgeted: 

$0 

Account Number(s): 

 N/A 

Account Name(s): 

Reviews/Approvals/Recommendations N/A 

_______ Commission, Board or Committee Unencumbered Balance(s) (prior to expenditure): 

Name(s)  N/A 

  

_______ Attorney  

_______ Insurance  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Manager’s Report; 2. Public Works/Capital Facilities Report; 3. Water Report; 4. Snack Shack Report 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
None. Report only. 
 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
Please see the attached Borough Manager’s Report, Public Works/Capital Projects Report, Water 
Report and Snack Shack Report. 



MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE ASSEMBLY 

  CITY AND BOROUGH OF WRANGELL 

 

FROM: LISA VON BARGEN 

BOROUGH MANAGER 

   

SUBJECT: MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

DATE: August 7, 2018 

 
INFORMATION: 

 

Water Treatment: 

Staff is waiting for a response from the Economic Development Administration, hopefully sometime in 

August, about a second review of the application for funding. The Capital Facilities Director and the 

Economic Development Director have been instrumental in addressing all the additional requests from 

EDA. Until the EDA funding is secured forward progress on the Water Treatment Plant is in a holding 

pattern. 

 

Nuisance Abatement: 

The ordinance proposing code revisions related to nuisance abatement will be distributed to the Assembly 

in draft format at this meeting. 

 

Healthcare Continuum: 

At the time of this report the Assembly was meeting in Executive Session to review the Asset Purchase 

Agreement and Lease transactional documents. The Assembly is scheduled to vote on the transaction on 

August 28th. 

 

Wrangell Junkyard Cleanup:  

Please see the report from Sally Schlichting at ADEC regarding the progress of material removal and 

preparation for shipping off island. 

 

Personnel Updates: 

Cyni Crary was hired as the Nolan Center Director. She started on July 24th. The Assembly approved the 

position descriptions for Capital Facilities Director and Public Works Director at the June 26th meeting. 

Amber Al-Haddad has taken the position as Capital Facilities Director. The position of Public Works 

Director has been posted. At last check we had five applications. The Electric Supervisor position was re-

posted. We have four additional applications. The Assembly will be taking action at this meeting on the 

Nolan Center Facility Manager Position. Greg Acuna will be promoted to this position upon its approval. 

The Electric Dispatch/Admin position was given to Dominique who had been serving in that position as a 

temp starting in January. There will be upcoming personnel changes before the Assembly at the next 

couple of meetings.   

 

Congressman Young Visit: 

The Assembly and members of the staff met with Congressman Young last Monday, July 30th. 

 

Parks & Rec Grant Awards: 

WCA Board and Tribal Members have selected the recipients of the 50K Healthy Community 

Grant awards distributed by SEARHC. Wrangell Parks and Recreation has been awarded $7,000 

for cardio and weight equipment improvements and the Kyle Angerman Capital Project. 

Additionally, Jill Privett was awarded $5,000 for a middle/high school extra-curricular program, 



 

 

 

which will be hosted in part by Parks and Recreation. The Board and Tribal Members are 

presenting the awards at Cultural Center on Thursday, August 9th @ 12:00PM. The Director, 

Borough Manager, Mayor and Vice Mayor will be at this event. WCA has contributed $19,000 

to Parks and Recreation projects between FY18 and FY19. A huge thank you to WCA. 

 

Economic Development Report from Carol Rushmore: 

AMHT/USFS Land Trade: 

Planning and Zoning Commission reviews the 3 preliminary plats dividing the Trust Lands that 

would go to the USFS. That land acquired by the USFS must stay in its existing state.  PZ was 

very concerned about continued access to land locked lots as well as to USFS land.   There are 

still internal discussion between AMHT and USFS regarding easements, encumbrances, 

encroachments and boundary lines. Dave Griffin with the Trust Land Office came to town and 

we discussed several areas they may subdivide in the future due to interest by adjacent 

landowners to purchase and utilize.  

Visitor Industry: 

So far we have entertained 3 travel writers this summer and 3 more planned in August.  Their 

interests and writing commitments have varied thus far, but including AAA Via and Journey, 

Serious Eats, Private Clubs, AFAR, Nat Geo Traveler, newspapers, online blogs, food interests, 

outdoor activities. Bearfest was strong this year. A few events seemed to have less people, but it 

varies from year to year.  We did talk to several folks who purposely scheduled their vacation to 

make it to Bearfest. One couple from California who changed their plans for Bearfest, was 

thrilled with the community of Wrangell and Bearfest.  

Central Tongass Landscape Level Analysis: 

This project is to pre NEPA clear ground breaking activities within the Petersburg and Wrangell 

Ranger Districts.  A Questionnaire and one public meeting was scheduled this winter to try and 

get some feed back as to types of activities Wrangellites would like to see.  This is a very broad 

topic of conversation and a new type of project process so I am not entirely clear as to the intent, 

activities and how this project will move forward.  For certain activities, the USFS might be able 

to generally clear NEPA  (ie restoration, culvert work, trails) and then when a project is 

conducted in an area, a more site specific analysis would be completed to approve or not 

approve.  I have had several meetings with USFS regarding this project and it is a new approach 

to their staff as well. A Notice of Intent has been submitted for review to the Washington DC 

office but we are not yet sure when it will be published in the Federal Register which will then 

start a 45 day public comment period.    This process is very important to monitor and comment 

on because it is unknown the full intent of this effort and what projects might be omitted that 

could be important to future opportunities. Once it the comment period has opened, the 

Assembly and public will be informed. A public meeting by the USFS will be scheduled and 

hopefully we can have additional smaller interest group meetings as well.  

 

Installation of Boatyard Gangway: 

A few months ago Greg Meissner reported the staff would be installing a gangway to facilitate 

boat owners from exiting boats after they are in the slings of the lift. This avoids a safety issue of 

having people on boats while they lifts are in progress. The gangway is installed. Please see the 

picture below: 

  



 

 

 

 
 



Public Works and Capital Projects Report  
August 3, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

 
City and Borough of Wrangell  
Public Works and Capital Improvement Projects Report 
August 3, 2018 
 
 
Vac Truck Update 
 
The CBW received the used Camel Vac Truck, purchased through surplus action from the City and 
Borough of Sitka.  Our mechanics performed a thorough inspection of the truck and its operations 
and have made repairs as necessary.  Some of the repairs include repairing the crack in one tank, 
recoating the tanks, repairing a broken wing window, replacing a turn signal switch, and building 
a pressure wand with hose.  Because Sitka maintained much of the optional hoses and adapters, 
we are pricing out some of these accessories which will aid in the performance of tasks that 
require specific reach.   
 
The truck has been used a number of times already, for work related to the departments of 
Water, Sewer, Electric and Harbors as follows:  

• Cleared plugged sewer line 

• Sump pumped out at the Marine Service Center haul out.  In the past staff have performed 
this task, which is time-consuming, by pumping-out the water and shoveling the debris 
by hand.   

• Excavation and dewatering assist with a water main repair where access was limited and 
the vac truck’s capabilities made short work of what normally takes much longer to 
perform.  

 
Future work anticipated with the Vac Truck: 

• Cleaning the Harbor’s oil water separator (8’ deep).  We have not had to perform this 
work to date, but it is time to do so after acquiring certain adapters.  

• The Harbor’s waste collection treatment center needs to be cleaned of its sand collection.   

• Duckweed removal from the Wastewater lagoon. 
 
Evergreen Avenue Rehabilitation and Pedestrian Access (CBW-owned, DOT-managed project) 
 
SECON is well into the reconstruction of the Evergreen Avenue road reconstruction project.  They 
have removed the asphalt throughout the project corridor and continue to work on culvert and 
storm structure replacement tasks.   
 
The CBW has received little to no complaints from residents about the project, and SECON has 
made great efforts to assist Public Works crews through our own issues related to area water 
leaks, etc.   



Public Works and Capital Projects Report  
August 3, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The CBW has created a project status webpage for the Evergreen Avenue project.  It can be 
found on the City’s website through the following link: 
http://www.wrangell.com/publicworks/evergreen-road-improvements-pedestrian-access-
project 
 
 
Shoemaker Bay Harbor Replacement 
 
Tamico-RNR JV is under contract for the Shoemaker Harbor project and the preconstruction 
meeting was held on July 24th with CBW staff, PND engineers, and Tamico-RNR JV representatives 
and their subcontractors present.  Following the Notice of Intent, the Contractor moved quickly,   
prior to full agreement execution, to begin their submittal and shop drawing tasks as these are 
quite lengthy processes, especially for the floats’ shop drawing coordination for review and 
approval prior to fabrication release.   The Contractor may begin some of the dredge work slightly 
ahead of the September 10th site take over date as it will not affect current harbor users.    
 
 
Public Safety Building Project 
 
Staff have met with Jensen Yorba Lott (JYL) to discuss the new scope of work for the roof and 
siding replacement project.  The project will include replacement of all three sections of the flat 
roof and replacement of the exterior siding system on those walls associated with those flat 
roof’s parapet walls.  Also included is reframing of the structurally-compromised eyebrow at the 
north eave location, as well as repairs to the 2008-installed gutter at the south eave location.  
  
While JYL has performed the bulk of the design for both the siding and roofing work, we have 
asked them to review the report provided by Advance Look and address the concerns raised 
regarding the development of an interior space envelope, as well as a review of the current fire 
code to determine if an exterior gypsum sheathing is required in the replacement siding system.  
The current siding replacement plans that JYL prepared in 2016/2017 (prior to the exterior 
building envelope inspection) call for replacing the siding system in kind; however, if there are 
new techniques and/or codes whereby we could modify the exterior siding system, we have 
asked them to explore those and provide options for our review.  We have also asked them to 
evaluate again the anticipation of replacement of damaged/rotten framing and the subsequent 
repairs to the interior vapor barrier and drywall, as we project encountering some framing 
members’ replacement. 
  
JYL will provide the CBW with a proposal to investigate these issues, report the findings, 
incorporate necessary design changes, provide for drawings that reflect this phased project, and 
provide an associated full project cost estimate for the newly scoped project, based on both the 
siding and roofing being performed under one contract.     
 

http://www.wrangell.com/publicworks/evergreen-road-improvements-pedestrian-access-project
http://www.wrangell.com/publicworks/evergreen-road-improvements-pedestrian-access-project


 
 
Water Report   
August 3, 2018 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Wrangell Water Report 
August 3, 2018 

Raw Water Reservoir Levels 
 
As of August 3rd, and despite the recent rainfall, both reservoirs are low, with the upper 
reservoir being about one and a half feet low and the lower reservoir being about a one foot 
low.   Earlier in the week, one of the two creeks that directly feed the upper reservoir was dry, 
and the other had barely any flow.  
 
Treated Storage Tank Levels 
 
Both tanks are currently maintaining daily recovery to their set points.  

 
Water Production 
 
Reported as a Daily Average, in Gallons:

- 1,007,857 gallons – Week of July 30th 
- 1,007,857 gallons – Week of August 7th  
- 897,142 gallons – Week of August 14th  
- 763,857 gallons – Week of August 21st  
- 694,000 gallons – Week of August 28th  
- 756,143 gallons – Week of September 4th  
- 810,000 gallons – Week of September 11th  
- 859,000 gallons – Week of September 18th  
- 784,000 gallons – Week of September 25th  
- 712,300 gallons – Week of October 2nd  
- 718,714 gallons - Week of October 9th  
- 734,000 gallons – Week of October 16th 
- 755,000 gallons – Week of October 23rd  
- 771,000 gallons – Week of October 30th  
- 759,286 gallons – Week of November 13th  
- 826,857 gallons – Week of November 20th 
- 730,000 gallons – Week of November 27th  
- 778,429 gallons - Week of December 4th   
- 764,000 gallons - Week of December 11th  

- 844,143 gallons - Week of December 18th  
- 922,142 gallons – Week of December 25th  
- 1,062,333 gallons – Week of January 1st  (2018) 
- 974,000 gallons – Week of January 8th  
- 946,000 gallons – Week of January 15th  
- 1,049,143 gallons – Week of January 22nd  
- 1,132,571 gallons – Week of January 29th  
- 1,151,286 gallons – Week of February 5th  
- 1,115,857 gallons – Week of February 12th  
- 934,571 gallons – Week of February 19th  
- 854,000 gallons – Week of February 26th  
- 626,571 gallons – Week of March 5th  
- 674,142 gallons – Week of March 12th  
- 705,571 gallons – Week of March 19th  
- 676,286 gallons – Week of March 26th  
- 658,857 gallons – Week of April 1st  
- 704,000 gallons – Week of April 8th  
- 686,000 gallons – Week of April 15th  
- 563,429 gallons – Week of April 22nd  



 
 
Water Report   
August 3, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

 

- 709,664 gallons – Week of April 29th  
- 518,142 gallons – Week of May 6th  
 (consumption 329,312 gallons) 

- 580,714 gallons  - Week of May 13th  
(consumption 357,772 gallons) 

- 588,285  gallons – Week of May 21st  
(consumption 349,070 gallons) 

- 530,857 gallons – Week of May 28th  
(consumption 315,815 gallons)  

- 565,429 gallons – Week of June 3rd  
(consumption 335,281 gallons) 

- 553,429 gallons - Week of June 10th  
(consumption 378,951 gallons) 

- 765,857 gallons – Week of June 17th  
(consumption 596,839 gallons) 

- 765,857 gallons – Week of June 24th  
(consumption 596,839 gallons) 

- 766,715 gallons – Week of July 1st  
(consumption 605,766 gallons) 

- 914,571 gallons– Week of July 8th  
(consumption 694,689 gallons) 

- 758,286 gallons – Week of July 15th  
(consumption 674,000 gallons) 

- 882,286 gallons – Week of July 22nd  
(consumption 302,440 gallons) 

 
Recent Water News 
 

 This week, the City and Borough of Wrangell issued a notice of request that all 
residents and businesses practice water conservation.  This conservation 
approach is part of our efforts to adapt to, and alleviate, the cumulative impacts 
of the drier-than-normal weather we have been experiencing and the seasonal 
increase in water demand and help us avoid more drastic water restrictions 
(copy of notice attached). 
 

 Following the loss of an air compressor controller a few weeks ago, our ozone 
production was down for a couple of weeks.  Although we had a spare controller 
on hand, the programming for the spare did not function properly and required 
shipping out for reprogramming.  This lack of full ozone production contributed 
to a reduced level of water quality.  Following restoration of full ozone 
production, Public Works performed system-wide flushing, which works to 
improve the water quality.   

 

 Sand filters are still maintaining long run times.  Sand cleaning by the plunging 
method continues but if possible, Wayne plans to reduce the plunging frequency 
because although it removes entrapped material, the result is that the filter bed 
loses its compaction thus allowing water to pass at a faster rate, which is not 
conducive to the biological removal of organics. The accelerated flow likely also 
contributes to the higher organic loads and higher turbidity in the treated water. 
 

 To date, we are still employing only one additional temporary staff, without the 
need for a second hire.    
 



 
 
Water Report   
August 3, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 Wrangell has experienced several water line breaks over the course of the last 
two months, as follows: 
- 6-5-18 Zimovia Highway at 5 mile, 12" DIP, corrosion holes along bottom of pipe 

(estimated 150 gpm water loss) 
- 7-9-18 Michaels Street (lower) 6" dip Aged water line deteriorating (estimated 

200 gpm water loss) 
- 7-9-18 Water main running between Zimovia Highway and Case Avenue, 12" DIP 

(estimated 400 gpm water loss) 
- 7-13-18 Rilatos Road at 2.5 mile Zimovia Hwy, 8" DIP, pitting/holes on bottom of 

pipe (estimated 100 gpm water loss) 
- 7-27-18 Alaska State Parks service saddle break (former Bangeman property), 

(estimated 50 gpm water loss) 
- 7-31-18 Spring Street, 8" DIP, large hole in bottom of DIP pipe (estimated 100-150 

gpm water loss) 
- 8-1-18 Spring Street, 8" DIP, hole in bottom of DIP pipe (estimated 50 gpm water 

loss) 
 
Pipe breaks within a water distribution system occur for a variety of reasons, including age, corrosion, 
poor installation, and others.   Any one break is a random occurrence; however, reoccurring breaks 
suggests conditions within the system are a threat to the infrastructure, as well as the resource, and 
we need to look for ways to eliminate or reduce the threat.  One of the most common conditions 
within a distribution system is water hammering, which typically occurs when a valve is closed 
suddenly or too quickly, and unexpected pipe breaks, causing excessive pressure or vibration within 
the system, fitting failure, displacement, and pipe wall breaks.  
 
The department is looking at a variety of optional devices used to mitigate the effects of excessive 
pressure in the pipes, such as air release valves, surge anticipator valves, and surge suppression tanks.  
The most economical of these devices, which would be located throughout the system, is currently 
being explored.    



MEMO 
 

 

 

To: Lisa Von Bargen 

From: Greg Meissner 

Date: July 31, 2018 

Re: Vending Machine Issue 

 

Lisa, 

Following our conversation regarding the vending machines located on City property I 

contacted Josh Young who is the new owner about the insurance and electricity issues.  Josh 

and I took a field trip to look at the sites the machines will be located and made a plan.  He will 

be placing the machine located in the Marine Service Center into an area that has an electrical 

meter.  This will allow us to know exactly what that machine is using for electricity.  Our plan is 

to use that number as an average for billing the other machines.  They also pay monthly storage 

rates for the square footage used by their machines.  Josh has made contact with his insurance 

company and will be adding that activity as well as the City and Borough of Wrangell as also 

insured.   

Josh will be having an electrician do all the electrical work necessary at each location. 

I will follow up again early next week to verify the insurance is taken care of and give you a 

status report. 

 

Thank you 

Greg 



CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: 
 

Clerk’s File 

NO. 8 Date August 7, 2018 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 

 

Kim Lane, Borough Clerk 

 

 

 
 
 
CALENDAR: 
 

8-9  P&Z Commission Regular mtg. (7pm) in the Assembly Chambers 
8-15 Hospital Board mtg. (5:30pm) in the Assembly Chambers 
8-28 Regular Assembly mtg. (7pm) in the Assembly Chambers 
  
 
SEAPA Board Meeting is scheduled for September 27th in Ketchikan 
 
++ The iAnnotate App did have an update to it’s navigation panel. If you would like me to update your iPad, 

please let me know. Otherwise, you can do the update from the App Store icon on your iPad.  
 

Declaration of Candidacy has begun and will continue until August 31st for the following  
elected official seats: 

 
 Mayor:                                  One – (2 Year Term)                          (David Jack) 
 
 Assembly:                                 Two – (3 Year Terms)                        (Drew Larrabee & David Powell) 
 
 Port Commission:                   Two  – (3 Year Terms)                      (Loretto Jones & John Martin)  
 
 School Board:                           Two  – (3 Year Terms)                      (Aleisha Mollen & Tamara Groshong) 
 
 Hospital Board:                        Two – (4 Year Terms)                       (Olinda White & vacant) 
 
 Hospital Board:                        One – (1 Year Unexpired Term until Oct. 2019)   (Don McConachie) 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 

A little something on “Decorum in debate”  
 

WMC: 3.05.070 Decorum in debate 
 
A. Members of the assembly may not address one another directly but 

must address all remarks through the chair. As much as possible, the 

use of names should be avoided in debate. Before making a motion or 

speaking in debate, a person must address the chair and be 

recognized. Any member who seeks the floor while entitled to it must 

be recognized. 

B. In debate a person’s remarks must have bearing on whether the 

pending motion should be adopted and should be germane to the 

question before the assembly. 

C. Every person while speaking shall avoid personalities, and under no 

circumstances may a person attack or question the motives of 

another person. Every person shall refer to any other person in a 

respectful manner. Every person shall avoid the use of profanities at 

all times. The chair must act immediately and decisively to correct a 

member violating decorum in debate and prevent its repetition.  

Lately there seems to be some “sidebar” discussions occurring. Please 

remember that if you have a question or comment, first be recognized 

by the Mayor and ask the question or state your comment. Sidebar 

discussions (although the topic is important) tend to disrupt the flow 

of the meeting as well as throw off the member or staff person who is 

speaking.  

https://images.search.yahoo.com/images/view;_ylt=AwrEzdI8v1dbkhoAtAM2nIlQ;_ylu=X3oDMTIzb2thMWMyBHNlYwNzcgRzbGsDaW1nBG9pZAM0NmMyYzEyM2IxOThkMGNiOWE0MjhmZjA4ZDdkOWYyYwRncG9zAzEzBGl0A2Jpbmc-?.origin=&back=https://images.search.yahoo.com/yhs/search?p%3Ddebate%2Bcartoon%26n%3D60%26ei%3DUTF-8%26type%3Dspd_frg_14_23_ie%26fr%3Dyhs-iry-fullyhosted_003%26fr2%3Dsb-top-images.search.yahoo.com%26hsimp%3Dyhs-fullyhosted_003%26hspart%3Diry%26tab%3Dorganic%26ri%3D13&w=470&h=239&imgurl=yipa.org/wp/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/calvin-cartoon.jpg&rurl=http://yipa.org/missing-debate-our-youth-election-cycle/&size=14.2KB&name=We+Are+Missing+A+%3cb%3eDebate%3c/b%3e+About+Our+Youth+This+Election+...&p=debate+cartoon&oid=46c2c123b198d0cb9a428ff08d7d9f2c&fr2=sb-top-images.search.yahoo.com&fr=yhs-iry-fullyhosted_003&tt=We+Are+Missing+A+%3cb%3eDebate%3c/b%3e+About+Our+Youth+This+Election+...&b=0&ni=21&no=13&ts=&tab=organic&sigr=11op3tqm5&sigb=16ksd051k&sigi=11ph7te91&sigt=120q1j733&sign=120q1j733&.crumb=ReCZuFtDS28&fr=yhs-iry-fullyhosted_003&fr2=sb-top-images.search.yahoo.com&hsimp=yhs-fullyhosted_003&hspart=iry&type=spd_frg_14_23_ie


CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: NO. 9  Date August 7, 2018 

Mayor and Assembly Business 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 

 

Kim Lane, Borough Clerk 

 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  

None. 

 

MAYOR/ASSEMBLY REPORTS AND APPOINTMENTS: 
 

INFORMATION:  This agenda item is reserved for the mayor and assembly to provide 
reports or comments and to introduce items not previously on the agenda which need to be 
brought to the attention of the entire assembly or the staff. Assembly members may hold 
limited discussion on these topics or ask the borough manager or the borough clerk for 
clarifying information. By majority consent of the assembly, the mayor or assembly may give 
direction to the borough manager or the borough clerk to add an item for consideration for 
the next regular assembly meeting. Other than as described in this subsection I, no action 
may be taken by the assembly under this agenda item. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: NO. 10  Date August 7, 2018 

Mayor and Assembly Appointments 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 

 

Kim Lane, Borough Clerk 

 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 

MAYOR/ASSEMBLY REPORTS AND APPOINTMENTS: 
 

INFORMATION:  This agenda item is reserved for the Mayor and Assembly Member’s special reports.  Such 
information items as municipal league activities, reports from committees on which members sit, conference 
attendance, etc., are examples of items included here. 

 
 

a. Appointment to fill the vacancy on the Wrangell Medical Center 
Board (appointment is until October 2018) 

 
There were no letters of interest received 

 
Appointment is to be made by the Mayor, with the consent of the 
Assembly.  



 

 

CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: NO. 13a DATE: August 7, 2018 

 

APPROVAL OF A MATCH AGREEMENT WITH THE US DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION, FOR THE NORTH COUNTRY 
TRAILHEAD ROAD REPAIR PROJECT 

SUBMITTED BY: 
FISCAL NOTE: 

Expenditure Required: none 

 

Amber Al-Haddad 
Capital Facilities Director 

 

Amount Budgeted: none 

 

Account Number(s): none 

n/a  Attorney  

n/a Insurance  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. DRAFT Federal Lands Access Program Match Agreement – North Country Trailhead 

Road Repair 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Approve Match Agreement with the US Department of Transportation, Federal Highway 
Administration, for the North Country Trailhead Road Repair Project. 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
In 2016 the City and Borough of Wrangell was a recipient of federal funds under the 
Department of Transportation, Federal Highway’s, Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) to 
construct the North Country Trailhead Road Repair project.  The project’s federal funds were 
approved for allocation during FY18.   
 
The project will repair the roadway from the end of pavement on Ishiyama Drive to the USFS’ 
North Country Trailhead, to provide safe vehicular access.  Specific work tasks include 
resurfacing spot portions of the roadway, recapping areas for erosion control, replacing a 
culvert or two and cleaning culverts, ditch reestablishment, and trimming of alders to return 
the scenic views of the Stikine River Delta.    
 
The first step in implementing the project is to execute a Match Agreement.  This agreement 
identifies the responsibilities of the parties with respect to the project scope and its funding 



 

 

and lists the proposed match, as submitted in our 2016 application with its respective project 
estimate.  The FLAP project funding requires a match be provided at a level of 9.03% of the 
total project cost.  With two years having passed since receiving project approval, there is an 
expectation that there could be an increase in construction costs, which if realized, would 
increase the match requirement.   
 
The CBW plans to use staff time during planning and managing the project as in-kind match for 
the North Country Trailhead Road Repair project.  Further, the USFS, Wrangell Ranger District, 
has offered to perform the NEPA work, which will also count toward the match.   
 
FLAP staff have indicated that the Match Agreement must be signed before any work begins, in 
order to count staff time as in-kind, toward the match.  As identified in the attached agreement 
document, the Match Agreement “is expected to be replaced and superseded by the execution 
of a Project Memorandum of Agreement,” wherein the project budget and the match can be 
modified through the project development process.  If projects costs are revalued to exceed 5% 
of the existing appropriated amount, we would request additional funds through the FLAP 
program.   
 
Staff’s in-kind work could serve to reduce our cash match and therefore we wish to execute the 
Match Agreement in order to begin further planning and developing this project.   



US Department of Transportation  Federal Lands Access Program  Western Federal Lands Highway Division, FHWA 

Federal Highway Administration            Match Agreement  610 E. Fifth Street Vancouver, WA 98661 

 

Page 1 of 2 

doc ver: 11.20.2017  

State:  Alaska 

 

Project Number/Name: AK WRANGELL 2016(1), North Country Trailhead Access Road Repair 

 
Parties to this Agreement: 
U.S. Department of Transportation 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
Western Federal Lands Highway Division, 
and 
City and Borough of Wrangell  

Purpose of Agreement: 
The purpose of this agreement is to document the intent of City and Borough of Wrangell to meet its match 
requirement for the subject project as authorized under 23 USC 201(b)(7)(B).  
 
With this agreement, Western Federal Lands Highway Division, FHWA authorizes this project as eligible for 
federal participation. The purpose of this project is to improve and/or create off-road parking and new 
connector trails by providing hardened and delineated pathways to a network of existing informal 
footpaths. This agreement does not commit the parties to complete the project, but, rather sets forth the 
respective responsibilities as the project proceeds. Any subsequent decisions to complete final design and 
to construct the project will depend on authorizing legislation, NEPA analysis, availability of appropriations, 
and matching funds at the time of obligation. 
 

The authority for FHWA to enter into this agreement is provided under Title 23 U.S.C. Section 204. 

Funding: 
The Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) under Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act) 
authorizes FHWA to provide funding for specific projects. The Program Decision Committee (PDC), 
consisting of FHWA, the State of Alaska, and an organization representing the local agencies of the state, is 
designated to jointly decide upon projects funded in the state. The PDC has selected this project for 
programming under the Alaska Federal Lands Access Program. 
 

All FLAP expenditures associated with this project after execution of this match agreement will need to be 
matched by a Non-Federal source, by other Federal funds other than those made available under Titles 23 
and 49 of the United States Code, or by funds made available under 23 U.S.C. 202 and 203. The matching 

requirement under the FAST Act will be met by City and Borough of Wrangell and other agencies that have 
committed to the project in subsequent agreements. The forms of match shall be those consistent with the 
'Federal-Aid Guidance Non-Federal Matching Requirements' and as approved by FHWA. In the state of 
Alaska, the match rate is 9.03% of the total project cost. 
 
The terms and form of the Match will be documented in the project Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) in 

coordination with the City and Borough of Wrangell and USFS – Tongass National Forest to be executed at a 
later date. The final Match will be determined based on actual expenditures at the conclusion of project work. 
Matching cash funds in FHWA receipt may need to be supplemented, or returned, once actual expenditures 
are determined. 
 
 
 



US Department of Transportation  Federal Lands Access Program  Western Federal Lands Highway Division, FHWA 

Federal Highway Administration            Match Agreement  610 E. Fifth Street Vancouver, WA 98661 

 

Page 2 of 2 

doc ver: 11.20.2017  

 

 

Federal Lands Access Program funds are administered by FHWA and are subject to annual appropriations from 
Congress. This document does not commit FHWA to advance the project or provide funds for the project, but 
provides the required matching funds if FHWA expends funds to advance the project. 
 
The following agencies have agreed to contribute the amounts shown which will reduce the federal share by the 
same amount.  

Agency Contributions: 
 

Agency Percentage of Match Total Match as a 
Percentage (%) 

Value of Match ($) 

    
City and Borough of 
Wrangell 

100% 9.03% $5,397 

 100% 9.03% $5,397 
 
 
City and Borough of Wrangell is responsible for their match as shown above. The required local match listed in the 
FLAP application was $5,397. The value of the match will be confirmed during the development of the Project 
Memorandum of Agreement. 

Modification: 
This agreement is expected to be replaced and superseded by the execution of a project Memorandum of 
Agreement. 
 
This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of the last signature: 
 
U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration 
Western Federal Lands Highway Division, FHWA 

Approved By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dan Donovan, Chief of Business Operations Date 
 
City and Borough of Wrangell  

Approved By: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Title:  Date 
  



 

 

CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: NO. 13b DATE: August 7, 2018 

 

APPROVAL OF A MATCH AGREEMENT WITH THE US DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION, FOR THE NON-MOTORIZED 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (MT. DEWEY TRAIL EXTENSION) PROJECT 

SUBMITTED BY: 
FISCAL NOTE: 

Expenditure Required: none 

 

Amber Al-Haddad 
Capital Facilities Director 

 

Amount Budgeted: $50,000 

 

Account Number(s): 28010-000-7900 

n/a  Attorney  

n/a Insurance  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. DRAFT Federal Lands Access Program Match Agreement – Non-Motorized Transportation System 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Approve Match Agreement with the US Department of Transportation, Federal Highway 
Administration, for the Non-Motorized Transportation System (MT. Dewey Trail Extension) 
Project. 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
In 2014, the City and Borough of Wrangell was a recipient of federal funds under the 
Department of Transportation, Federal Highway’s, Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) to 
construct the Non-Motorized Transportation System.  The project’s federal funds were 
approved for allocation during FY18 and FY19.   
 
There are two major non-motorized transportation systems to which improvements will be 
made under this project.  
 

1. Mt. Dewey Trail Extension to the US Forest Service Visitor’s Center and District Office – 
Work includes construction of an approximate 3/4-mile of trail extension, connecting 
the existing Mt Dewey Trail to the USFS Visitor’s Center and District Office.  This 
connector route may consist of a combination of boardwalk, geogrid panels and gravel 
surfacing, as determined through the design process.  Trailhead parking options will be 



 

 

explored through the planning and design phase of the project.  The work also proposes 
to install interpretive and directional signs along the route.   
 

2. U.S. Forest Service Visitor’s Center and District Office to East Channel Paddle Craft Trail 
(via Ishiyama Drive, ADOT Highway) – Work includes creating orderly, off-road parking 
outside of the ADOT’s highway ROW, providing for the minimum two parking spaces.  
The work also proposes to install a trailhead sign and an interpretive kiosk with map, 
educating visitors of the recreation opportunities, the natural and cultural interests, 
other unique points of local interest, and naming the features of the landscape across 
the East Channel on the Tongass National Forest.  

 
The first step in implementing the project is to execute a Match Agreement.  This agreement 
identifies the responsibilities of the parties with respect to the project scope and its funding 
and lists the proposed match, as submitted in our 2014 application with its respective project 
estimate.  The FLAP project funding requires a match be provided at a level of 9.03% of the 
total project cost.  With four years having passed since receiving project approval, there is an 
expectation that there could be an increase in construction costs, which if realized, would 
increase the match requirement.   
 
The CBW budgeted, under the FY19 Commercial Passenger Vessel Excise Tax Fund, $50,000 as a 
cash match for the Mount Dewey Trail Extension project.  In addition to the availability of this 
fund toward the match, we will be able to utilize staff’s time during planning and managing the 
project toward the match requirement.  Further, the USFS, Wrangell Ranger District, has 
offered to perform the NEPA work, which will also count toward the match.   
 
FLAP staff have indicated that the Match Agreement must be signed before any work begins, in 
order to count staff time as in-kind, toward the match.  As identified in the attached agreement 
document, the Match Agreement “is expected to be replaced and superseded by the execution 
of a Project Memorandum of Agreement,” wherein the project budget and the match can be 
modified through the project development process.  If projects costs are revalued to exceed 5% 
of the existing appropriated amount, we would request additional funds through the FLAP 
program.   
 
Staff’s in-kind work could serve to reduce our cash match and therefore we wish to execute the 
Match Agreement in order to begin further planning and developing this project.   



US Department of Transportation  Federal Lands Access Program  Western Federal Lands Highway Division, FHWA 

Federal Highway Administration            Match Agreement  610 E. Fifth Street Vancouver, WA 98661 

 

Page 1 of 2 
doc ver: 11.20.2017  

State:  Alaska 
 
Project Number/Name: AK WRANGELL 2015(1), City and Borough of Wrangell Non-Motorized Transportation 
System 
 
Parties to this Agreement: 
U.S. Department of Transportation 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
Western Federal Lands Highway Division, 
and 
City and Borough of Wrangell  

Purpose of Agreement: 
The purpose of this agreement is to document the intent of City and Borough of Wrangell to meet its match 
requirement for the subject project as authorized under 23 USC 201(b)(7)(B).  
 
With this agreement, Western Federal Lands Highway Division, FHWA authorizes this project as eligible for 
federal participation. The purpose of this project is to improve and/or create off-road parking and new 
connector trails by providing hardened and delineated pathways to a network of existing informal 
footpaths. This agreement does not commit the parties to complete the project, but, rather sets forth the 
respective responsibilities as the project proceeds. Any subsequent decisions to complete final design and 
to construct the project will depend on authorizing legislation, NEPA analysis, availability of appropriations, 
and matching funds at the time of obligation. 
 
The authority for FHWA to enter into this agreement is provided under Title 23 U.S.C. Section 204. 

Funding: 
The Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) under Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act) 
authorizes FHWA to provide funding for specific projects. The Program Decision Committee (PDC), 
consisting of FHWA, the State of Alaska, and an organization representing the local agencies of the state, is 
designated to jointly decide upon projects funded in the state. The PDC has selected this project for 
programming under the Alaska Federal Lands Access Program. 
 
All FLAP expenditures associated with this project after execution of this match agreement will need to be 
matched by a Non-Federal source, by other Federal funds other than those made available under Titles 23 
and 49 of the United States Code, or by funds made available under 23 U.S.C. 202 and 203. The matching 
requirement under the FAST Act will be met by City and Borough of Wrangell and other agencies that have 
committed to the project in subsequent agreements. The forms of match shall be those consistent with the 
'Federal-Aid Guidance Non-Federal Matching Requirements' and as approved by FHWA. In the state of 
Alaska, the match rate is 9.03% of the total project cost. 
 
The terms and form of the Match will be documented in the project Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) in 
coordination with the City and Borough of Wrangell and USFS – Tongass National Forest to be executed at a 
later date. The final Match will be determined based on actual expenditures at the conclusion of project work. 
Matching cash funds in FHWA receipt may need to be supplemented, or returned, once actual expenditures 
are determined. 
 
 



US Department of Transportation  Federal Lands Access Program  Western Federal Lands Highway Division, FHWA 

Federal Highway Administration            Match Agreement  610 E. Fifth Street Vancouver, WA 98661 

 

Page 2 of 2 
doc ver: 11.20.2017  

 
 
 
Federal Lands Access Program funds are administered by FHWA and are subject to annual appropriations from 
Congress. This document does not commit FHWA to advance the project or provide funds for the project, but 
provides the required matching funds if FHWA expends funds to advance the project. 
 
The following agencies have agreed to contribute the amounts shown which will reduce the federal share by the 
same amount.  

Agency Contributions: 
 

Agency Percentage of Match Total Match as a 
Percentage (%) 

Value of Match ($) 

    
City and Borough of 
Wrangell 

100% 9.03% $45,123 

 100% 9.03% $45,123 
 
 
City and Borough of Wrangell is responsible for their match as shown above. The required local match listed in the 
FLAP application was $45,123. The value of the match will be confirmed during the development of the Project 
Memorandum of Agreement. 

Modification: 
This agreement is expected to be replaced and superseded by the execution of a project Memorandum of 
Agreement. 
 
This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of the last signature: 
 
U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration 
Western Federal Lands Highway Division, FHWA 

Approved By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dan Donovan, Chief of Business Operations Date 
 
City and Borough of Wrangell  

Approved By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Title:  Date 
  



CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: NO. 13c DATE: August 7, 2018 

 

Approval of a Five-Year Extension of the Municipal Solid Waste Transport and Disposal 
Agreement with Republic Services at a First Year Combined Base Rate of $121.03 Per 
Ton with 3.5% Annual Scheduled Increases in Years 2-5 

SUBMITTED BY: 
FISCAL NOTE: 

Expenditure Required:  

Estimated up to $215,000 in FY 2018/2019 

Amber Al-Haddad 
Capital Facilities Director 

 

Amount Budgeted:  

$210,000 

Account Number(s): 78000-603-7840 

n/a  Attorney  

n/a Insurance  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Municipal Solid Waste Transport and Disposal Agreement dated July 30, 2013 between the City 

and Borough of Wrangell and Republic Services. 
2. Municipal Solid Waste Transport and Disposal Agreement Extension Letter dated August 3, 2018 

from Republic Services. 
3. Graph comparison of Water, Sewer & Trash Index, Seattle All Urban Consumers Index and 

Garbage/Trash Index, as provided by Republic Services 
4. Seattle area, all urban consumers, CPI, as provide by the US Bureau of Labor Statistics 

5. Water and sewer and trash, all urban consumers, CPI, as provided by the US Bureau of Labor 
Statistics 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

Move to approve a Five-Year Extension of the Municipal Solid Waste Transport and 
Disposal Agreement with Republic Services at a First Year Combined Base Rate of 
$121.03 Per Ton with 3.5% Annual Scheduled Increases in Years 2 through 5. 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
Republic Services has been a long-standing provider of municipal solid waste disposal service 
for the City and Borough of Wrangell.  To continue utilizing this service, we are scheduled to 
execute a five-year contract extension with Republic Services for the transportation and 
disposal of Wrangell’s municipal solid waste this year.  

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text



 
The existing agreement with Republic Services took effect on July 30, 2013 and was set to 
extend for a subsequent five-year term under the same provisions unless either party provides 
notice of termination at least 12-months prior to the end of the 5-year term.   
 
Our agreement with Republic Services includes a provision for price adjustments for inflation 
which are scheduled to be adjusted annually based on the percentage change in the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) for all Urban Consumers for the Seattle-Tacoma area.  This CPI has been 
steadily increasing over the last three years and is expected to continue to trend upward.  
According to the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, Seattle area prices were up 0.8 percent for the 
two months ending June 2018, and up 3.3% from a year ago.   
 
Because the projection for the consumer price inflation in the Seattle area is expected to 
continue, Republic Services proposed, to their Southeast Alaska customers, to extend the 
subsequent five-year contract with Service Fee, Price Adjustment for Inflation, based on the 
percentage change in the Water/Sewer/Trash CPI, as published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, stating that this index has been trending downward for the last three years (attached 
is the CPI indexes’ comparison submitted by Republic Services).   
 
In part because the information found on the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics websites indicates 
that the Water Sewer Trash CPI has also been trending upward for the last ten years (see 
attached CPI history for the national index for Water Sewer Trash) and because both CPIs and 
transportation charges are volatile, we proposed a fixed percentage change in our contract’s 
annual price adjustment with Republic Services.  Through price negotiations, Republic Services 
has agreed to base the price increase, for both the disposal component and the transportation 
component, on a fixed 3.5% annual increase in lieu of utilizing either of the aforementioned 
CPIs.  Incidentally, Petersburg just negotiated the same deal. Agreeing to a fixed increase allows 
the CBW to have a reliable number upon which to base budget decisions. This new fee plan 
with Republic will factor into the rate study done for the solid waste fund. 
 
With the implementation of a fixed 3.5% annual increase, the following key terms would be 
made a part of the price adjustment with Republic Services: 
 

• Our current base disposal rate of $62.20 per ton will be maintained for the first of the 
five-year extension.  Republic Services will forgo the planned disposal component 
increase in 2018 and begin implementing future price increases on July 1, 2019 and on 
July 1st of subsequent years.  

• Our current base transportation rate of $47.00 per ton, from Wrangell to Seattle, will be 
increased to $58.83.  With this increase, Republic Services has explained that they are 
seeking to balance the increased costs of the Alaska Marine Lines’ transportation costs, 
which have been escalating, on average by 3.83%, and have significantly outpaced the 
current price index provisions in the contract.  Republic Service currently pays a 
transportation rate of $58.83 to AML and have requested the base transportation rate 
increase to cover this actual cost.  



• The 5-year contract extension, covering the period of August 1, 2018 through July 30, 
2023, would begin with a combined disposal and transportation base rate of $121.03 
per ton in FY 2018/2019.  

 
In addition to these base rate fees, other fees identified by the agreement include those for: 
fuel surcharge (subject to adjustment quarterly), container overweight, and Washington State 
refuse tax.   
 
A copy of the Municipal Solid Waste Transport and Disposal Agreement dated July 2013 with 
Republic Services is attached.  Also attached is the draft extension agreement letter which 
provides for the changes to the original agreement for term, pricing and annual price 
adjustment language.  All other provisions of the 2013 agreement shall remain in effect under 
this extension. 
 
The terms and conditions in this agreement are scheduled to remain in force until such time as 
certain terms and conditions are modified with mutual agreement by both parties.  A contract 
extension letter agreement is also attached, in draft form, which serves to identify the 
amendments to provisions of the original agreement document.  
 
Based on the volume of solid waste that Wrangell shipped in FY18 (1,547 tons), we estimate the 
cost for solid waste disposal in FY19, under the new rate structure, at $215,000.  We currently 
have $210,000 budgeted for this expenditure.  Instead of requesting an amendment at this 
time to cover this estimated $5,000 additional cost, we will track this expense over the next 
several months to determine if a budget amendment is needed.   
 
Until such time as the agreement is formally extended, Republic Services has offered a 
temporary extension of the agreement for solid waste disposal through August 2018, or until 
the Wrangell Borough Assembly approves the five-year extension document.  This temporary 
extension incorporates a rate that aligns with the above outlined disposal and transportation 
rates, combined at $121.03 per ton.     
 
The Sanitation Department seeks approval of a five-year extension of the Municipal Solid Waste 
Transport and Disposal Agreement with Republic Services at a first year combined 
transportation and disposal base rate of $121.03 per ton, with 3.5% annual increases in years 
two through five.  
 
Approval of the five-year municipal solid waste disposal service agreement extension maintains 
a contractual relationship with a high-quality and reliable service provider that has 
demonstrated a willingness to work toward solutions for a continued partnership.  
 
Republic Services continues to commit to working with Wrangell, in partnership with AML, on 
the necessary changes to which we anticipate transitioning toward the use of 40’ closed-top 
transportation containers to replace the 48’ open-top containers currently in use for the 
transportation of Wrangell’s solid waste.   
 





























 

 

1600 127th Ave. NE 
Bellevue, WA 98005 
www.republicservices.com  

 
 
August 3, 2018  
 
Amber Al-Haddad 
Public Works Director 
City & Borough of Wrangell  
PO Box 531 
Wrangell, Alaska 99929 
 
 
Subject: Extension of MSW Transport & Disposal Agreement 
 
 
Dear Amber, 
 
Republic Services is please to extend the current Municipal Solid Waste Transport and Disposal 
Agreement between the City of Wrangell and Republic Services for an additional Five (5) year 
period with the inclusion of the following mutually negotiated terms.   
 
Republic Services will maintain the current disposal rate of $62.20 per ton and increase the base 
transportation rate to $58.83, plus applicable fuel sur charge to provide a true up to current rates 
provided by Alaska Marine Lines for barge service from the Wrangell, AK to Seattle, WA. 
 
Republic Services will implement a combined base Transportation and Disposal rate of $121.03 
beginning on July 30th, 2018.  
 
An annual price adjustment to the combined Transportation and Disposal rate will be 
implemented utilizing a flat 3.5% fixed rate beginning September 1st, 2019 and for each following 
year of the agreement. 
 
We are looking forward to continuing our partnership with the City of Wrangell.  
 
 
 
 

Republic Services     City of Wrangell  
 
 
By: ________________________________________   By: ________________________________________ 

Gregg Brummer, Northwest Area President   On Behalf of Wrangell, Alaska 
 
 
 



 





 



 

CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: NO. 13D DATE: August 7, 2018 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 08-18-1421: A RESOLUTION OF THE ASSEMBLY OF THE CITY AND 
BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA PROVIDING FOR THE CREATION OF THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR 
THE POSITION OF NOLAN CENTER FACILITY MANAGER AND THE AMENDMENT OF THE NON-
UNION WAGE AND GRADE TABLE 
 

   
 
 
 
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: 
FISCAL NOTE: 

Expenditure Required:  
   
 Lisa Von Bargen, Borough Manager Amount Budgeted:  
  
Account Number(s):  

    

Account Name(s):  

Reviews/Approvals/Recommendations    
 

 

 Borough Assembly Unencumbered Balance (prior to expenditure): 

n/a Attorney    

n/a Insurance  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 08-18-2018 
2. Nolan Center Facility Manager Job Description 
3. Non-Union Wage & Grade Table  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Move to adopt Resolution 08-18-1421 providing for the creation of the job description 
for the Position of Nolan Center Facility Manager and the Amendment of the Non-
Union Wage and Grade Table. 
   

SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

As part of the FY 2019 Budget the Assembly approved a small organizational chart change for the 

Nolan Center. This included the elimination of the part-time, permanent Custodian position and the 

creation of the full-time permanent Nolan Center Facility Manager position.  Along with the new 

kim
Rectangle

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text
       13d

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Rectangle

kim
Typewritten Text
    1421

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text

kim
Typewritten Text



Nolan Center Director, the Facility Manager will cover all the job duties previously covered over the 

years by five different positions including Civic Center Manager, Museum Director, Theater Manager, 

Assistant Theater Manager and Custodian. 

 

The Job Description is attached for review by the Assembly. The position will be paid a grade 18 which 

has a hourly wage range of $23.19-$29.22.  

 

Administration is looking forward to the new direction these two positions will be able to take the 

facility. Greg Acuan, who has worked at the Nolan Center in many capacities as a temporary employee 

for the past several years; and who recently served as the Interim Director after Terri’s retirement, has 

been promoted to this position. This will become “official” upon approval by the Assembly. 



CITY AND BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

 

RESOLUTION No.  08-18-1421 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ASSEMBLY OF THE CITY AND 

BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA PROVIDING FOR THE 

CREATION OF THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE POSITION OF 

NOLAN CENTER FACILITY MANAGER AND THE AMENDMENT 

OF THE NON-UNION WAGE AND GRADE TABLE 

 
WHEREAS, the Nolan Center has been staffed by 1.5 full-time equivalent positions; 

and many temporary employees; and 

 

WHEREAS, this level of permanent, full-time staffing is insufficient to accommodate 

the time and work required to supervise the operations of the facility; and 

 

WHEREAS, in the FY 2019 Budget the Assembly approved the termination of the 

permanent, part-time custodian position and the creation of a permanent, full-time Facility 

Manager; and 

 

WHEREAS, the two new permanent positions of Nolan Center Director and Nolan 

Center Facility Manager fulfill the obligations of five previous positions including: Civic 

Center Manager, Museum Director, Theater Manager, Assistant Theater Manager and 

Custodian; and 

 

WHEREAS, with the retirement of the existing Civic Center Manager, who has also 

been serving as the Museum Director, now is the time to address organizational efficiencies; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the rate of pay for this position shall be a grade 18 with an hourly wage 

pay range from $23.19 to $29.22 which is commensurate with other similar positions in the 

organization. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ASSEMBLY OF THE CITY 

AND BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA,  

 

 Section 1. The attached Exhibit “A” includes the job description which describes 

the duties, responsibilities and qualifications for the Nolan Center Facility Manager. 

 

 Section 2. The new job description for the Nolan Center Facility Manager will 

become effective immediately upon passage and approval of this resolution. 

 

 Section 3. The attached Exhibit “B” is the Non-Union Wage and Grade Table 

reflecting the addition of the Nolan Center Facility Manager at grade 18. 

 

 Section 4. The attached Exhibit “B” repeals all other previous Non-Union Pay 

Plans and becomes effective immediately upon passage and approval of this resolution.  

 



 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE ASSEMBLY OF THE CITY AND 

BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA THIS 7TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2018. 

 

      CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL 

 

       

_________________________________ 

      David L. Jack, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: _________________________________ 

      Kim Lane, Borough Clerk 



 

Facilities Manager 
Nolan Center 8/2/18  

City & Borough of Wrangell    Position Description 
Position: Facility Manager Position Number:   

Department/Site: Nolan Center  FLSA: Non-exempt 

Evaluated by: Nolan Center Director Salary Grade: 18 

 

Summary 
 

Collaborates with the director to oversee the Nolan Center facility operations. Following the 

strategic goals set by the director, the manager offers recommendations and input to assist in 

managing the Museum, Collections, Gift Shop, Civic Center and Theater. 

 

Distinguishing Career Features 
 

The Facilities Manager is responsible for managing the Nolan Center facility. The manager 

works closely with the site director to enhance the day-to-day business operations of the 

facility; leading staff and overseeing upkeep throughout the facility. 

 

Essential Duties and Responsibilities 
 

The following duties and responsibilities are intended to be general guidelines and may 

change based on the needs of the facility and the development of strategic goals. 

 

OPERATIONS 

▪ Assist the director with day-to-day operations and management of the facility 

▪ Manages and leads the team to enhance operations based on the strategic goals 

▪ Set-up for events including logistics, planning and organization of rooms and 

equipment use 

▪ Assists with the Gift Shop operations, summer cruise-ship tours and visitor 

assistance as needed, including the billing process 

▪ Supervises prioritization of winter projects Collections, Artifacts, Museum Exhibits 

 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION  

▪ Works with the director to prepare and administer work schedules for employees to 

meet the needs of the facility and within the guidelines of the budget 

▪ Prepares recommended projects for director and works in partnership with the 

director to prioritize the needs of the facility 

 

GENERAL FACILITY  

▪ Makes recommendations to the director regarding facility needs 

▪ Does research and provides quotes for maintenance and repair recommendations 

▪ Maintains procedures, product specifications, and manuals of facility equipment 

▪ Responsible for ordering supplies and maintaining inventory records of all 

equipment and supplies throughout the facility 

▪ Monitors and administer maintenance and cleaning throughout the facility 

▪ Monitor HVAC system and security systems throughout the building 

 

TEAMWORK AND COOPERATION 

▪ Works cooperatively with the director, employees, contractors, other city 

departments, renters and the public 

 



 

Facilities Manager 
Nolan Center 8/2/18  

SUPERVISION 

▪ Works closely with the director to supervise employees 

▪ Trains and guides the Lead Attendant to assist with all facility operations 

▪ Provides staff and volunteer training regarding general maintenance, inventory, and 

stocking the facility. Trains staff and volunteers to learn audio and video equipment  

 

MAINTENANCE 

▪ Develops and leads the safety program guidelines and procedures for the facility 

▪ Oversees and schedules building maintenance within budget guidelines discussed 

with the director and relies on staff from Public Works, Parks and Rec and 

independent contractors for general maintenance 

 

THEATER 

▪ Manages all aspects of the theater operations 

▪ Develop policies and procedures for the theater production process 

▪ Coordinate with the director and the lead attendant to determine movie showings 

▪ Maintain relationship with booking agent, following protocol and reporting 

▪ Maintains working knowledge of all theater equipment and operations 

▪ Manages concessions ordering, supplies and sales providing reports to director 

▪ Work with director to schedule staffing needs including the rotation of managing 

each movie night between the director, manager and lead attendant 

▪ Assist the director with booking statewide cultural activities for the theater 

 

MUSEUM/COLLECTIONS 

▪ Assists the director in all aspects of Museum and Collections operations, including 

developing policies and procedures, record keeping and safety protocol 

▪ Keeps accurate records of artifacts on loan or donated from the community through 

standard museum registration techniques 

▪ Monitors humidity and temperature for stability 

▪ Assists in the preparation of annual loan renewals 

 

CIVIC CENTER/VISITOR CENTER 

▪ Assists in all aspects of promoting Wrangell and the use of the center 

▪ Develops and maintains operating procedures for conventions and meetings in 

collaboration with the director  

▪ Facilitates promotional opportunities for booking the center  

 

PUBLIC RELATIONS 

▪ Provides direct public interaction and exceptional service when setting up events 

▪ Provides technical support to renters when using facility equipment 

▪ Exceptional customer service during tours of the facility/Museum 

 

Qualifications 
 

▪ Abilities 

Ability to work cooperatively in a managerial role collaborating daily with the director. 

Ability to perform a variety of administrative duties and proactively learn new techniques. 

Must have the ability to motivate and lead staff with new processes. 

 

Requires the ability to communicate effectively both orally and in written form. Must be 

capable of handling the changing needs and priorities of the facility. Willingness to 

perform various job-related tasks with a strong sense of teamwork. Ability to lead by 

example and give direction while implementing the strategic goals of the facility. 



 

Facilities Manager 
Nolan Center 8/2/18  

 

▪ Education and Experience 

High school diploma. Previous management experience and some college is desirable. 

Event planning and catering knowledge is helpful. Technical expertise is a plus. 

 

▪ Knowledge and Skills 

▪ Requires working knowledge of the facility and general maintenance 

▪ Requires the skills to organize and set up for events/functions 

▪ Requires general computer knowledge and office experience 

 

▪ Physical Abilities 

Ability to lift and/or carry 50 pounds, move tables/chairs and a variety of equipment. 

Ability to work flexible hours including weekend and evening hours for events. 

 

▪ Licenses and Certificates 

Requires valid Alaska Driver’s License. Food handlers card is needed for the kitchen. 

 

▪ Working Conditions 

Most work is performed indoors where minimal safety considerations exist. May work 

long hours, (including weekends and holidays) and outside in garden area when needed. 

 

This job/class description describes the general nature of the work performed, representative 

duties as well as the typical qualifications needed for acceptable performance.   It is not intended 

to be a complete list of all responsibilities, duties, work steps, and skills required of the job. 

 



Permanent Non-exempt Employee Pay Plan, City and Borough of Wrangell, Hourly Compensation

old step 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

Grade Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

8 14.96 15.26 15.55 15.84 16.14 16.44 16.76 17.09 17.41 17.74 18.08 18.43 18.78

9 15.62 15.91 16.21 16.52 16.85 17.17 17.49 17.82 18.16 18.52 18.88 19.24 19.61

12 17.73 18.07 18.42 18.78 19.14 19.50 19.87 20.27 20.66 21.05 21.46 21.87 22.29

13 18.55 18.90 19.26 19.63 20.00 20.40 20.79 21.19 21.59 22.02 22.45 22.88 23.32

14 19.38 19.75 20.14 20.53 20.92 21.32 21.74 22.16 22.58 23.01 23.46 23.91 24.37

16 21.18 21.58 22.01 22.43 22.86 23.30 23.77 24.22 24.68 25.16 25.65 26.15 26.66

17 22.17 22.59 23.02 23.47 23.93 24.39 24.86 25.36 25.85 26.35 26.86 27.38 27.91

18 23.19 23.65 24.10 24.56 25.03 25.53 26.02 26.52 27.05 27.57 28.11 28.66 29.22

21 26.43 26.96 27.48 28.01 28.56 29.12 29.68 30.26 30.85 31.44 32.05 32.68 33.32

23 28.55 29.11 29.67 30.25 30.84 31.43 32.06 32.68 33.31 33.97 34.63 35.31 36.00

25 30.94 31.54 32.17 32.79 33.42 34.09 34.75 35.44 36.13 36.84 37.56 38.30 39.05

26 32.22 32.84 33.48 34.14 34.80 35.49 36.18 36.89 37.61 38.34 39.09 39.86 40.64

8 Custodian 14 Dispatch/Corrections Officer 21 Police Officer Probationary

9 Library Assistant 1

17 Police Officer Recruit 23 Police Officer

12 DMV Assistant

Recreation Coordinator 18 Administrative Assistant - Police 25 Police Sergeant

Library Assistant 2 Corrections Sergeant

Accounting Generalist 26 Police Lieutenant

13 Accounting Clerk Firemedic/Trainer

Utility Accounts Clerk Nolan Center Facility Manager

Permanent, Salaried (Exempt) Employee Pay Plan, City and Borough of Wrangell, Monthly Compensation

old step 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

Grade Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

19 4,209.00        4,290.00        4,375.00        4,458.00        4,543.00        4,630.00        4,722.00        4,812.00        4,904.00        5,001.00        5,098.00        5,197.00        5,297.00        

24 5,150.00        5,252.00        5,353.00        5,457.00        5,566.00        5,673.00        5,782.00        5,897.00        6,011.00        6,131.00        6,250.00        6,373.00        6,498.00        

25 5,363.00        5,467.00        5,576.00        5,684.00        5,793.00        5,909.00        6,023.00        6,143.00        6,263.00        6,386.00        6,510.00        6,639.00        6,769.00        

27 5,821.00        5,935.00        6,049.00        6,171.00        6,290.00        6,413.00        6,540.00        6,666.00        6,800.00        6,932.00        7,067.00        7,205.00        7,348.00        

28 6,070.00        6,191.00        6,311.00        6,436.00        6,561.00        6,689.00        6,821.00        6,952.00        7,091.00        7,228.00        7,370.00        7,516.00        7,663.00        

30 6,607.00        6,739.00        6,869.00        7,006.00        7,141.00        7,282.00        7,426.00        7,571.00        7,720.00        7,873.00        8,027.00        8,185.00        8,346.00        

19 Civic Center Manager 25 Harbormaster 28 Economic Development Director

24 Library Director 27 Borough Clerk 30 Finance Director

Parks & Recreation Director Electrical Superintendent

Fire Chief Police Chief

Nolan Center Director Director of Public Works & Capital Projects

Temporary/Part-time/Seasonal Employees

Hourly Compensation

Note:  Each step represents the amount above the prevailing State of Alaska Minimum Wage 9.84               

Grade Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

1 State MW 0.30 0.60 0.90 1.20 1.50 1.80 2.10 2.40 2.70 3.00 3.30 3.60

3 0.70 1.00 1.30 1.60 1.90 2.20 2.50 2.80 3.10 3.40 3.70 4.00 4.30

4 1.70 2.00 2.30 2.60 2.90 3.20 3.50 3.80 4.10 4.40 4.70 5.00 5.30

5 2.70 3.00 3.30 3.60 3.90 4.20 4.50 4.80 5.10 5.40 5.70 6.00 6.30

6 3.20 3.50 3.80 4.10 4.40 4.70 5.00 5.30 5.60 5.90 6.20 6.50 6.80

7 3.70 4.00 4.30 4.60 4.90 5.20 5.50 5.80 6.10 6.40 6.70 7.00 7.30

8 4.20 4.50 4.80 5.10 5.40 5.70 6.00 6.30 6.60 6.90 7.20 7.50 7.80

9 4.70 5.00 5.30 5.60 5.90 6.20 6.50 6.80 7.10 7.40 7.70 8.00 8.30

11 6.20 6.50 6.80 7.10 7.40 7.70 8.00 8.30 8.60 8.90 9.20 9.50 9.80

Actual Temp Rates, Calendar Year 2017

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

1 9.84 10.14 10.44 10.74 11.04 11.34 11.64 11.94 12.24 12.54 12.84 13.14 13.44

3 10.54 10.84 11.14 11.44 11.74 12.04 12.34 12.64 12.94 13.24 13.54 13.84 14.14

4 11.54 11.84 12.14 12.44 12.74 13.04 13.34 13.64 13.94 14.24 14.54 14.84 15.14

5 12.54 12.84 13.14 13.44 13.74 14.04 14.34 14.64 14.94 15.24 15.54 15.84 16.14

6 13.04 13.34 13.64 13.94 14.24 14.54 14.84 15.14 15.44 15.74 16.04 16.34 16.64

7 13.54 13.84 14.14 14.44 14.74 15.04 15.34 15.64 15.94 16.24 16.54 16.84 17.14

8 14.04 14.34 14.64 14.94 15.24 15.54 15.84 16.14 16.44 16.74 17.04 17.34 17.64

9 14.54 14.84 15.14 15.44 15.74 16.04 16.34 16.64 16.94 17.24 17.54 17.84 18.14

11 16.04 16.34 16.64 16.94 17.24 17.54 17.84 18.14 18.44 18.74 19.04 19.34 19.64

1 Lifeguard 4 Sales Assistant 7 Clerical Assistant

Recreation Assistant Laborer

Theater Sales Associate Assistant Theater Manager 8 Custodian

3 Head Lifeguard 5 Park Maintenance I 9 Maintenance Custodian

6 Senior Sales Assistant 11 Theater Manager

Park Maintenance II

Resolution No. 09-17-1376

G:\1A - AGENDA MANAGEMENT - ASSEMBLY\Lisa\August 7, 2018\13d NC Facility Manager\4 Non-union W&G Table with actual temp rates 9-2017



 

4831-3250-7231\1 

CITY & BOROUGH OF WRANGELL, ALASKA 

BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AGENDA STATEMENT 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: No. 15 a & b Date August 7, 2018 

 
a. Assistance Request from Lavern Lawrence 

 
b. Matters Related to the Transfer of WMC to SEARHC 

 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 

 

 

Lisa Von Bargen, Borough Manager  
 

 

 

 
 

 

15a I move, pursuant to 44.62.320 (c)(2) and 44.62.320(c)(1) that we recess into 
executive session to discuss matters that may tend to prejudice the reputation and 
character of any person and, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have 
an adverse effect upon the finances of the Borough; specifically, to discuss the 
assistance request from Lavern Lawrence with the Borough Manager. 

 
 
 

15b I move, pursuant to AS 44.62.310 (c)(1) and AS 44.62.310(c)(3), and section 
3.04.120 of the Wrangell Municipal Code,  that we recess into executive session to 
discuss privileged and confidential attorney-client information with our legal 
counsel, Dorsey & Whitney LLP and the Borough Manager, as well as information 
the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the 
finances of the Borough, regarding a proposed Asset Purchase Agreement between 
the Borough and SEARHC regarding the Wrangell Medical Center. 


	Agenda August 7, 2018 (rescheduled fr 7-24-18)
	CEREMONIAL MATTERS
	Certificate of Service - Patrick Mayer

	CONSENT AGENDA 
	6a: Regular Assembly minutes - June 26, 2018 
	6a: Special Assembly minutes - July 11, 2018
	6a: Special Assembly minutes - July 19, 2018
	6b: School Board Action 
	6b: School Board Minutes - May 21, 2018
	6c: Federal Lobbyist Report - June '18
	6d: PILT Update - June '18
	6e: Byford Junkyard Status Update (W/E 7-8-18) 
	6f: Byford Junkyard Status Update (W/E 7-15-18)
	6g: Byford Junkjard Status Update (W/E 7-22-18)
	6h: Hospital Board Minutes - 6-20-18  
	6i: Catholic Community Services Repoting (covers 10-2017 thru 3-2018)

	Agenda Item 7
	Agenda Statement Manager's Report 8-7-2018
	Manager's Report 8-7-2018
	Public Works/Capital Facilities Report 8-3-18 
	Water Report 8-3-18
	Snack Shack Report

	Clerk's File
	Item 9: Mayor & Assembly Business
	Item 10: Mayor/Assembly Appointments 
	Item 13a - Match Agreement / Trailhead Road Project
	13a-1: Draft Agreement 

	Item 13b: Match Agreement w/ USDOT (Mt. Dewey Trail Ext) 
	13b-1: Draft Agreement

	Item 13c - Extension for Muni Solid Waste Transport & Disposal Services (Agreement)
	MSW Agreement July 2013
	DRAFT August 3 2018 Agreement Extension Letter
	Graph Comparison of Indexes
	Seattle and WST Indexes from US BLS
	Urban Consumers (CPI)

	Item 13d: Res 08-18-1421
	Res # 08-18-1421
	Draft Job Description 
	W&G Table (non-union) 

	Executive Session
	15a: Assistance Request from Lavern Lawrence
	15b: Matters related to the Transfer of WMC to SEARHC




